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( H e a r i n g commenced a t 10:03 a.m.) 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONC: We a r e on t h e 

 

Cood m o r n i n g . 

COUNSEL: Cood m o r n i n g . 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONC:  Dave A r m s t r o n g . 

I'm t h e C h a i r . And w i t h me i s J i m C a r d n e r , 

V i c e - C h a i r . And a l s o w i t h me i s L i n d a B r e a t h i t t . 

She's o u r C o m m i s s i o n e r . 

And we're h e r e on Case Number 

2013-00144,  The A p p l i c a t i o n Of The K e n t u c k y Power 

Company For The A p p r o v a l Of Terms And C o n d i t i o n s Of 

The Renewable E n e r g y P u r c h a s e Agreement For Biomass 

E n e r g y R e s o u r c e s Between The Company And The ecoPower 

C e n e r a t i o n - H a z a r d , LLC. A l s o t h e a u t h o r i z a t i o n t o 

e n t e r i n t o t h i s a g r e e m e n t i s b e f o r e u s , and t h e g r a n t 

o f c e r t a i n d e c l a r a t o r y r e l i e f and as w e l l as t h e g r a n t 

o f o t h e r r e q u i r e d a p p r o v a l s and r e l i e f . 

For t h e A p p l i c a n t . 

MR.  Yes, s i r . Mr. C h a i r m a n , Ken 

C i s h f r o m S t i t e s & H a r b i s o n , PLLC, 250 West Mai n 

S t r e e t , S u i t e 2300, L e x i n g t o n , K e n t u c k y 40507. 

W i t h me a r e Mr. O v e r s t r e e t , who you 

know, and Mr. G a r c i a , who i s w i t h AEP. Mr. C a r c i a has 

a p e n d i n g m o t i o n f o r a d m i t t a n c e p r o hac v i c e b e f o r e 
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t h e C ommission. 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: Okay. G e n e r a l . 

MS. HANS: O f f i c e o f t h e A t t o r n e y 

G e n e r a l r e p r e s e n t i n g t h e r a t e p a y e r s . J e n n i f e r B l a c k 

Hans, A s s i s t a n t A t t o r n e y G e n e r a l .  me t o d a y  

G r e g o r y  who  new t o o u r o f f i c e . Mr. B u t t o n 

has been h e r e a month b u t  j u s t s h o r t o f a mont h , 

b u t  j o i n i n g o u r o f f i c e t o d a y and  a s s i s t i n g 

 a s s i s t i n g us w i t h t h i s c a s e . 

I  want t o n o t e f o r t h e r e c o r d , 

 Your Honor, t h a t b e c a u s e Mr. D u t t o n j u s t had 

t h e o p p o r t u n i t y t o r e v i e w  case v e r y b r i e f l y o v e r 

t h e p a s t few d a y s , he has n o t s i g n e d on t o t h e 

 a g r e e m e n t t h a t we have  t h e 

p a r t i e s , so he has n o t  a p a r t y t o any 

c o n f i d e n t i a l p r o c e e d i n g s   m a t t e r and h e ' l l s t e p 

o u t  we go  c o n f i d e n t i a l r e c o r d f o r any 

 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: Thank y o u . 

MS. HANS: Thank y o u . 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONC: On b e h a l f o f t h e 

Commission, welcome. 

MR. DUTTON: Thank y ou. 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONC: You have a 

c o n c e r n e d l o o k on y o u r f a c e , and b u t  a 
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f r i e n d l y a r e n a h e r e , so welcome, and w e ' l l see you  

t h e f u t u r e . 

Mr. K u r t z . 

MR. KURTZ: Good m o r n i n g , Mr. C h a i r m a n . 

For   K u r t z and K u r t Boehm. 

Your Honor, t h e members o f  

p a r t i c i p a t i n g   c a s e , t h e consumers o f K e n t u c k y 

Power: M a r a t h o n P e t r o l e u m , AK S t e e l ,  P r o d u c t s ,  

L l q u l d e and EQT Cas. 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONC: V e r y w e l l . 

Mr. Nguyen. 

MR. NGUYEN: Yes. Your Honor, Quang 

Nguyen on b e h a l f o f Commission and Commission S t a f f . 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: Mr. Nguyen, has 

p u b l i c n o t i c e been r e c e i v e d ? 

MR. NGUYEN:   Your Honor. 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONC: And 1 t h i n k t h e r e 

 one m o t i o n p e n d i n g . 

MR. NGUYEN: Your Honor, t h e r e a r e 

s e v e r a l m o t i o n s t h a t have r e c e n t l y been a d d r e s s e d by 

Commission o r d e r t h a t was I s s u e d y e s t e r d a y a f t e r n o o n , 

and I b e l i e v e t h e p a r t i e s , c o u n s e l f o r t h e p a r t i e s 

have r e c e i v e d t h o s e o r d e r s . 

One was K e n t u c k y Power's p e t i t i o n f o r 

c o n f i d e n t i a l t r e a t m e n t o f t h e p r o p o s e d r e n e w a b l e 
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e n e r g y p u r c h a s e a g r e e m e n t w i t h ecoPower. 

The o t h e r i s t h e A t t o r n e y G e n e r a l ' s 

m o t i o n t o h o l d t h e m a t t e r  a beyance. 

And t h e t h i r d m o t i o n was K e n t u c k y 

Power's r e q u e s t t o have a  o r 

a p p r o v e d c o u r t r e p o r t e r p r e s e n t h e r e . 

T h e r e a r e o t h e r m o t i o n s t h a t a r e 

o u t s t a n d i n g , b u t t h o s e  be a d d r e s s e d by s u b s e q u e n t 

o r d e r s . T h a t d o e s n ' t have I m p a c t on t h e h e a r i n g 

 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: Do you  t o h e a r 

any o f t h e s e m o t i o n s now? 

MR. NGUYEN:  r e s p e c t t o t h e m o t i o n 

f o r t h e K e n t u c k y Power's r e q u e s t f o r c o n f i d e n t i a l 

t r e a t m e n t o f t h e r e n e w a b l e e n e r g y p u r c h a s e  

Your Honor, t h e Commission I s s u e d t h e o r d e r y e s t e r d a y 

a f t e r n o o n d e n y i n g t h a t r e q u e s t . 

However, p r o c e d u r a l l y , K e n t u c k y Power 

has 20 days  w h i c h  c o u l d p o t e n t i a l l y  

e x e r c i s e  a p p e l l a t e r i g h t s on t h a t , so as a 

p r o c e d u r a l m a t t e r , t h e h e a r i n g s h o u l d p r o c e e d as  

t h e I n f o r m a t i o n  s t i l l t o be c o n s i d e r e d 

 So we  be r e q u i r e d t o go  

c o n f i d e n t i a l s e s s i o n  any q u e s t i o n s t o u c h upon t h a t 

p a r t i c u l a r I n f o r m a t i o n w i t h i n t h e c o n t r a c t I t s e l f . 
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CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: Mr. G i s h . 

MR.  Yes. Mr. C h a i r m a n , t h e 

K e n t u c k y Power i s s t i l l e v a l u a t i n g w h e t h e r o r n o t  

 g o i n g t o a p p e a l , so t h e o r d e r r e g a r d i n g 

c o n f i d e n t i a l i t y . 

And we have n o t r e c e i v e d any o b j e c t i o n 

y e t t o , and I wonder  anyone o b j e c t s t o a d m i t t i n g 

Mr. C a r c i a p r o hac  t o  m a t t e r . 

MS. HANS: No  Your Honor. 

MR. NGUYEN: No, no o b j e c t i o n s t o  

Your Honor. 

MR.  Thank y o u . 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONC: Welcome. 

MR. CARCIA: I a p p r e c i a t e  

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: We have a 

m i c r o p h o n e s i t u a t e d b e h i n d t h e c o u n s e l t a b l e f o r 

members o f t h e p u b l i c who  t o be h e a r d a t  

 . 

  10:10.  has been --  

h e a r i n g has been a d v e r t i s e d a t  a.m., so t h e 

p u b l i c s h o u l d know   t h e s t a r t  so  

 j u s t a m i n u t e o r t w o . 

MR. OVERSTREET: C e r t a i n l y . 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONC: And a t some  

 t h e y come  l a t e , 1 have a l l o w e d them t o I n t e r r u p t 
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t h e h e a r i n g and h e a r f r o m them. So t h i s i s a p u b l i c 

f o r u m and we want t o make s u r e t h e p u b l i c  h e a r d . 

MR. OVERSTREET: W e ' l l be g u i d e d by t h e 

Commission's  Your Honor. 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: A l l r i g h t . I t  

1 0 : 1 1 . 

Mr.  y o u r w i t n e s s . 

MR. GISH: Thank y o u , Mr. C h a i r m a n . 

K e n t u c k y Power c a l l s  f i r s t w i t n e s s , 

Mr. Creg P a u l e y . 

* * * 

CRECORY C. PAULEY, c a l l e d by K e n t u c k y 

Power Company, h a v i n g been f i r s t d u l y s w o r n , t e s t i f i e d 

as  

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

By Mr.  

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONC: Have a s e a t . Speak 

up l o u d and c l e a r . What do you do, Mr. P a u l e y ? 

THE WITNESS:  p r e s i d e n t and COO o f 

K e n t u c k y Power Company. 
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1 CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: And have you been 

2 t h a t l o n g ? 

3 THE WITNESS: T h r e e y e a r s . 

4 CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONC: And why a r e you 

5 h e r e ? 

6 THE WITNESS:  h e r e t o t e s t i f y  

7 r e g a r d t o t h e a p p l i c a t i o n b e t w e e n us and ecoPower w i t h 

8          
  c i  

9     1   :  W i t n e s s . 

10 MR. CiSH. Thank you, Mr. C h a i r m a n 

11   .   you cause t o have  

12 i n t h i s case d i r e c t and r e b u t t a l t e s t i m o n y ? 

13 A 1  

14 Q And  you cause t o have f i l e d   

15 case a n s w e r s t o d a t a r e q u e s t s ? 

16 A I  

17 Q And do you have any c o r r e c t i o n s o r 

18 u p d a t e s t o y o u r t e s t i m o n y o r d a t a r e q u e s t s ? 

19 A  1 do  

20 Q And  1 were t o ask you t h e same 

21 q u e s t i o n s t o d a y t h a t a r e  y o u r d i r e c t and r e b u t t a l 

22 t e s t i m o n y , w o u l d you  t h e same ans w e r s ? 

23 A   

24 MR.  Mr. Ch a i r m a n , 1 t e n d e r 

25 Mr. P a u l e y f o r  

McLENDON-KOGUT REPORTINC SERVICE, LLC (502) 585-5634 



12 

1 MS. HANS: Your Honor, i n an e f f o r t 

2 t o j u s t o f j u d i c i a l economy, i n an e f f o r t n o t t o be 

3 d u p l i c a t i v e , t h e A t t o r n e y G e n e r a l w o u l d  t o d e f e r 

 t o KIUC t o s t a r t t h e q u e s t i o n s , and we can go -- we 

5 can c o n t i n u e  t h a t o r d e r . 

6 CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: V e r y w e l l . 

7 MS. HANS: Thank  Your Honor. 

8 CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: Mr. K u r t z . 

9 MR. KURTZ: Thank  Your Honor. 

10 

11  * * 

12 

13 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

14 

15 By Mr. K u r t z : 

16 

17 Q Good m o r n i n g , Mr. P a u l e y . 

18 A Good m o r n i n g . 

19 Q  you t u r n t o page 4 o f y o u r 

20 t e s t i m o n y , p l e a s e , y o u r d i r e c t t e s t i m o n y ? A r e you 

21 t h e r e , Mr. P a u l e y ? 

22 A 1 am  

23 Q Okay. On l i n e s 9 t h r o u g h 12 y o u ' r e 

24 a s k e d t h e q u e s t i o n o f who made t h e d e c i s i o n s on b e h a l f 

25 o f K e n t u c k y Power t o e n t e r  t h e ecoPower 
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a g r e e m e n t , and i t ' s c o r r e c t t h a t , i n c o l l a b o r a t i o n 

 AEP management,  was y o u r d e c i s i o n ? 

A T h a t  c o r r e c t . 

Q Okay.   t o ask you j u s t some 

b a c k g r o u n d q u e s t i o n s a b o u t t h e p r i c i n g u n d e r t h e 

 . 

MR. KURTZ:  d e s p i t e t h e 

Commission's r u l i n g y e s t e r d a y , t h e r e ' s  20-day 

p e r i o d , so I s o r t o f I m m e d i a t e l y go  some 

I n f o r m a t i o n w h i c h   

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: Yes. 

MR. KURTZ: Okay. 

MS. HARWARD: Can 1 ask you t o h o l d on? 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: Yes. 

MS. HARWARD:  g o i n g t o have t o --

t h e r e ' s s o m e t h i n g wrong  my --

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: I n o t i c e d  

b e e p i n g  

I f you h a v e n ' t s i g n e d t h e 

 a g r e e m e n t , you must l e a v e now. 

 t e s t i m o n y o f G r e g o r y G. 

P a u l e y h e a r d f r o m 10:13 a.m. t o 10:18 a.m.) 

MR. KURTZ: S h o u l d somebody go --

THE COURT: S t e p h a n i e , can you I n v i t e 

t h e --  

McLENDON-KOGUT REPORTING SERVICE, LLC (502) 585-5634 
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Q Mr. P a u l e y , I am g o i n g t o show you some 

d a t a r e s p o n s e s t h a t you f i l e d ? 

MR. KURTZ: And ask t h a t t h e s e t h e s e 

a r e  t h e r e c o r d , o f c o u r s e , b u t j u s t f o r ease o f 

  we c o u l d have  marked as KIUC Number 

2 . 

Q Mr. P a u l e y ,   q u e s t i o n you a r e 

as k e d by S t a f f t o p r o v i d e any economic s t u d i e s o r 

a n a l y s i s t h a t have been p e r f o r m e d  c o n n e c t i o n  

t h e ecoPower b i o m a s s g e n e r a t i n g f a c i l i t y by K e n t u c k y 

Power, e t c e t e r a . 

And y o u r answer  t h a t no economic 

s t u d i e s were p e r f o r m e d ? 

A T h a t  c o r r e c t . 

Q  you -- you o b v i o u s l y f e l t t h a t was 

r e a s o n a b l e , b u t g i v e n t h e m a g n i t u d e o f t h e d o l l a r 

e x p e n d i t u r e , do you t h i n k t h a t t h a t ' s do you 

c o n t i n u e t o b e l i e v e t h a t was a r e a s o n a b l e b u s i n e s s 

 ? 

A I t h i n k  was r e a s o n a b l e  r e g a r d t o 

 p a r t i c u l a r I s s u e and t h e I n t r o d u c t i o n o f 

r e n e w a b l e s  K e n t u c k y Power, t h e  o f 

 p o r t f o l i o . 

I t was a l s o c o n s i s t e n t  t h e 

G o v e r n o r ' s e n e r g y p l a n and a number o f t h i n g s t h e r e 
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t h a t we f e l t we needed t o be a d d r e s s i n g as we l o o k e d 

a t i t . 

Q Okay. The n e x t i f you t u r n t o page 2 

o f t h i s e x h i b i t , y o u ' r e a s k e d by KIUC, " D i d K e n t u c k y 

Power p e r f o r m any s t u d i e s i n o r d e r t o i d e n t i f y t h e 

l e a s t - c o s t means o f p r o v i d i n g e n e r g y and c a p a c i t y t o 

K e n t u c k y Power?" 

And y o u r answer was no s t u d i e s were 

 

A T h a t  c o r r e c t . 

Q Okay. The n e x t page y o u ' r e a s k e d by 

KIUC, d i d you c o n d u c t a RFP t o d e t e r m i n e t h e 

l e a s t - c o s t r e n e w a b l e c a p a c i t y and e n e r g y . I n o t h e r 

w o r d s ,   -- was t h e r e s o m e t h i n g l o w e r c o s t 

t h a t ' s r e n e w a b l e , l o w e r t h a n ecoPower. 

And t h e answer was you  n o t do any 

s t u d i e s on t h a t e i t h e r ? 

A We  n o t do an RFP. They a p p r o a c h e d 

us and we t o o k t h e o p p o r t u n i t y t o engage  

c o n v e r s a t i o n and t h e n t r i e d t o see   m i g h t be a 

w o r k a b l e d e a l . 

Q Okay. On t h e n e x t , page 4 o f 6, y o u ' r e 

a s k e d t o p r o v i d e a l l s t u d i e s and a n a l y s i s 

d e m o n s t r a t i n g K e n t u c k y Power's need f o r t h e e n e r g y and 

c a p a c i t y s u p p l i e d  t h e r e n e w a b l e e n e r g y p u r c h a s e 
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And t h e answer was you d i d no suc h 

s t u d i e s ? 

A T h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q So i n o r d e r w o r d s , you e n t e r e d i n t o t h e 

c o n t r a c t n o t even k n o w i n g i f you needed t h e power? 

A W e l l , I w o u l d n ' t say t h a t we e n t e r e d 

 t h e c o n t r a c t w i t h o u t k n o w i n g  we needed t h e 

power. I t h i n k we e n t e r e d  t h e c o n t r a c t 

r e c o g n i z i n g t h a t as K e n t u c k y Power l o o k e d o u t  t h e 

f u t u r e , we r e c o g n i z e d , number one, a t t h e end o f  

y e a r we a r e on o u r own  r e g a r d t o o u r c a p a c i t y , 

 r e g a r d t o t h e p o o l a g r e e m e n t e x p i r a t i o n . 

L o o k i n g a t  f r o m t h e s t a n d p o i n t o f t h e 

econ o m i c b e n e f i t s , t h e  b e n e f i t s , t h e G o v e r n o r ' s 

e n e r g y p l a n and a l l t h a t , we a l s o r e c o g n i z e d  

m i g h t be a c u s h i o n  r e g a r d t o , as I o p e r a t e 

K e n t u c k y Power Company, t h a t  p r o v i d e s me some 

a d d i t i o n a l c a p a c i t y . I   you l o o k a t where we 

a r e  r e g a r d t o t h e PJM and t h e r e s e r v e m a r g i n , 

we're -- we've g o t  a t h r e e p e r c e n t 

c u s h i o n , and  a d d i t i o n a l 58.5 me g a w a t t s g i v e s us 

maybe   p e r c e n t c u s h i o n , and t h a t ' s n o t v e r y 

much when you t h i n k a b o u t  t h e r e ' s g r o w t h and 

d e v e l o p m e n t  E a s t e r n K e n t u c k y f r o m an eco n o m i c 
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d e v e l o p m e n t p e r s p e c t i v e , I have t h a t c u s h i o n t o make 

s u r e I'm t h e r e f o r t h e c u s t o m e r s . 

Q W i l l you t u r n t o page 5 o f 6 o f t h i s 

d ocument, o f t h i s KIUC E x h i b i t 2? You're a s k e d by 

S t a f f a b o u t t h e need f o r t h e ecoPower t r a n s a c t i o n . 

W i l l you r e a d y o u r answer t o b., wh a t ' s h i g h l i g h t e d 

t h e r e ? 

A L e t me l o o k a t t h e q u e s t i o n   

you w o u l d , p l e a s e . T h a t ' s q u e s t i o n b., r i g h t ? 

10 Q Yes. 

 MR. GISH: Mr. Ch a i r m a n ,  d a t a 

r e q u e s t was r e s p o n d e d t o by Mr. Wohnhas. He's t h e 

13 w i t n e s s t h a t p r o v i d e d  I n f o r m a t i o n , j u s t t o 

14 c l a r i f y f o r t h e r e c o r d . 

 Q Ch. W e l l , l e t me ask you  you a g r e e 

16 w i t h Mr.  a s s e r t i o n h e r e t h a t a s s u m i n g t h e 

M i t c h e l l t r a n s f e r  a p p r o v e d , and f u r t h e r a s s u m i n g 

 Sandy  1 were t o be r e t i r e d and r e p l a c e d  

an a l t e r n a t i v e , more  s u p p l y s o u r c e o f 

r o u g h l y e q u i v a l e n t c a p a c i t y and e n e r g y , t h e REPA 

21 c a p a c i t y and e n e r g y w o u l d n o t be r e q u i r e d . 

22 Do you a g r e e  Mr. Wohnhas? 

23 A W e l l , I w o u l d a g r e e  t h a t . 

24 Q So  t h e Commission a p p r o v e s , f o r 

25 e x a m p l e , t h e s t i p u l a t i o n t h a t was p r e s e n t e d  t h e 

17 

18 

19 

20 
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M i t c h e l l c a s e , t h a t t h e ecoPower e n e r g y and c a p a c i t y 

w o u l d n o t be needed? 

A I w o u l d a g r e e  t h a t as we l o o k a t us 

t o d a y . As I a n s w e r e d p r e v i o u s l y , l o o k i n g o u t a t t h e 

f u t u r e and p r o v i d i n g some c u s h i o n f o r g r o w t h f o r 

E a s t e r n K e n t u c k y , t h a t ' s why we c o n t i n u e d  t h e 

n e g o t i a t i o n s and u l t i m a t e a g r e e m e n t . 

VICE-CHAIR GARDNER: Mr. K u r t z , 

w o u l d n ' t -- t h e s t i p u l a t i o n d o e s n ' t have us a p p r o v i n g 

t h e a l t e r n a t i v e s u p p l y f o r  Sandy 1, does  

MR. KURTZ: I t ' s c o r r e c t . I t says t h a t 

t h e y w i l l make an a p p l i c a t i o n f o r a c e r t i f i c a t e t o 

c o n v e r t  Sandy 1, a p p r o x i m a t e l y $60 m i l l i o n . 

VICE-CHAIR GARDNER: Okay. I j u s t 

w a n t e d t o make s u r e t h a t t h a t --

MR. KURTZ: You're r i g h t . 

VICE-CHAIR GARDNER: Okay. 

MR. KURTZ: Yeah. 

Q Mr. P a u l e y , y o u r t e s t i m o n y , a g a i n , y o u r 

p r e f i x e d d i r e c t , on page 6,  8 --  18, y o u ' r e 

a s k e d a q u e s t i o n , ( R e a d i n g ) I s t h e ecoPower REPA t h e 

l e a s t - c o s t a l t e r n a t i v e t o s u p p l y  c a p a c i t y and 

 

And you a n s w e r e d no;  t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A T h a t  c o r r e c t . 
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Q I n f a c t , y o u ' r e aware o f Mr.  

c a l c u l a t i o n t h a t t h e f i r s t - y e a r r a t e i n c r e a s e 

a s s o c i a t e d w i t h t h i s c o n t r a c t w o u l d be a b o u t seven 

p e r c e n t on y o u r consumers? 

A   

Q Now -- and he  t h a t by s a y i n g w h a t ' s 

t h e f u l l p u r c h a s e p r i c e , and he's g o t t h a t E x h i b i t 1, 

t h e f u l l p u r c h a s e p r i c e  a b o u t $50 m i l l i o n  y e a r 

one, b u t t h e r e ' s some o f f s e t t i n g b e n e f i t s , and  

comes down t o a b o u t $35 m i l l i o n  t h e n e t I m p a c t t o 

 ? 

A S u b j e c t t o c h e c k . I ' d have t o -- i t ' s a 

m a t t e r o f r e c o r d . 

Q D i d you do any t y p e o f a n a l y s i s t o see 

what t h a t seven p e r c e n t e x t r a r a t e I n c r e a s e , t h a t 

u n n e c e s s a r y r a t e I n c r e a s e w o u l d do t o y o u r consumers? 

A W e l l , I guess I'm c o n f u s e d a b o u t y o u r 

 o f " u n n e c e s s a r y . " The o p p o r t u n i t y t o 

d i v e r s i f y my p o r t f o l i o  r e g a r d t o t h e M i t c h e l l 

a s s e t t r a n s f e r , t h e h o p e f u l --  a p p r o v e d by  

C ommission, t h e gas c o n v e r s i o n t o  1 and t h e n what 

we have  ecoPower w o u l d e n a b l e me, I t h i n k , f r o m 

t h e s t a n d p o i n t o f b u i l d i n g a g e n e r a t i o n p o r t f o l i o , 

l o o k i n g o u t and p r o t e c t i n g n o t o n l y t h e Company b u t 

a l s o p r o t e c t i n g o u r c u s t o m e r s , because we r e a l l y d o n ' t 
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know where EPA i s g o i n g on i s s u e s , and I t h o u g h t t h i s 

was a g r e a t o p p o r t u n i t y t o  I n v e s t i g a t e , and 

engage  a r e n e w a b l e . 

We a l l u n d e r s t a n d r e n e w a b l e i s more 

e x p e n s i v e , and I d o n ' t t h i n k t h e r e ' s anybody   

room t h a t d o e s n ' t r e f l e c t upon t h e f a c t t h a t r e n e w a b l e 

 more e x p e n s i v e , b u t t h e o p p o r t u n i t y t o g r a b h o l d o f 

t h a t and move my p o r t f o l i o  t h a t d i r e c t i o n I t h o u g h t 

was t o o good t o pass up. 

Q  you r e a d Mr. T a y l o r ' s t e s t i m o n y , 

KIUC w i t n e s s T a y l o r ? 

A I ' v e r e a d t h a t t e s t i m o n y . 

Q Do you r e a d t h a t he's f a m i l i a r  

r e n e w a b l e s o l i c i t a t i o n s , RFPs, where t h e r e s u l t s were 

t h a t t h e a c t u a l -- t h e g r e e n power was a l o w e r c o s t 

t h a n t h e c o n v e n t i o n a l brown power, r e s u l t i n g  

e s s e n t i a l l y n e g a t i v e REC c o s t s ? 

A I w o u l d t e l l you t h a t I r e a d t h r o u g h 

t h a t b u t  n o t do a w h o l e l o t , b u t  you a r e 

t a l k i n g a b o u t RFPs and a l l t h a t , l e t ' s remember t h a t 

one o f t h e t h i n g s t h a t we   r e g a r d t o t h e  

1 c o n v e r s i o n was p u t o u t an RFP, and  t h a t RFP 

r e n e w a b l e s were s o l i c i t e d . We r e c e i v e d a b s o l u t e l y 

z e r o r e s p o n s e s  r e g a r d t o r e n e w a b l e e n e r g y . 

So f r o m t h a t p e r s p e c t i v e , t h e r e was 
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an o p p o r t u n i t y was p r e s e n t e d i n t h a t t o l o o k a t and 

a n a l y z e t h e r e ' s n o t h i n g o u t t h e r e , and  was 

  a case where I g e t r e n e w a b l e s I n s i d e my 

s e r v i c e t e r r i t o r y , make an I n v e s t m e n t I n s i d e my 

t e r r i t o r y , and  o r d e r t o d i v e r s i f y my p o r t f o l i o . 

 T h a t s e v e n p e r c e n t r a t e I n c r e a s e t h a t 

Mr. Wohnhas c a l c u l a t e d , do you r e c a l l t h a t t h a t  

n o t I n c l u d e t h e e x t r a e q u i t y t h a t K e n t u c k y Power w o u l d 

be r e q u i r e d t o c a r r y on  b a l a n c e s h e e t b e c a u s e t h e 

r a t i n g a g e n c i e s w o u l d   2 0 - y e a r , l o n g - t e r m 

a g r e e m e n t as a d e b t e q u i v a l e n t ? 

A I'm n o t s u r e I u n d e r s t a n d y o u r q u e s t i o n . 

Q I n o t h e r w o r d s , t h e seven p e r c e n t o f 

Mr. Wohnhas  n o t I n c l u d e t h e e x t r a c o s t o f c a r r y i n g 

more e q u i t y t o o f f s e t t h e d e b t component, t h e f a c t 

t h a t  w o u l d be t r e a t e d as a d e b t component by S&P 

and Moody's and F i t c h ? 

A L e t me t r y t o answer t h a t q u e s t i o n  

way: We,  t h e n e g o t i a t i o n s  ecoPower,  a l l 

t h a t we c o u l d t o m i t i g a t e t h e  a s s o c i a t e d  o u r 

c u s t o m e r s and o u r company. And,  e s s e n c e , we t h i n k 

we have p r o t e c t e d o u r c u s t o m e r s and t h e Company w i t h 

r e g a r d t o any  a s s o c i a t e d   and any f u t u r e 

I s s u e s I n v o l v e d  t h a t , and t h a t was my g o a l . 

Q Do you r e c a l l t h a t Mr. K o l l e n  
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i n c l u d e t h e d e b t e q u i v a l e n t   a n a l y s i s and came 

up  a 7.84 p e r c e n t r a t e I n c r e a s e r a t h e r t h a n t h e 

7.02 p e r c e n t c a l c u l a t e d by Mr. Wohnhas? 

A I w o u l d have t o do t h a t s u b j e c t t o 

 

Q L e t me, Mr. P a u l e y , hand you a document 

MR. KURTZ: I f we c o u l d have  m a r k e d 

as KIUC 3 

t h e e x h i b i t s ? 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: We're g o i n g t o move 

MR. KURTZ: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: Okay. 

COMMISSIONER BREATHITT: Mr. K u r t z , 

w h i l e y o u ' r e h a n d i n g t h a t o u t , can I c l a r i f y s o m e t h i n g 

 Mr. P a u l e y ? 

MR. KURTZ: Yes, ma'am. 

COMMISSIONER BREATHITT: Mr. P a u l e y , 

when you were a n s w e r i n g Mr. K u r t z ' s q u e s t i o n a b o u t 

o t h e r r e n e w a b l e s o u r c e s o f s u p p l y and you  t h e r e ' s 

n o t h i n g o u t t h e r e — 

THE WITNESS: T h e r e were --

COMMISSIONER BREATHITT:  was an 

I n - s t a t e . Can you summarize t h a t p a r t o f y o u r Q and A 

 Mr. K u r t z f o r me a g a i n ? 

THE WITNESS: I w o u l d be happy t o . And 
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i f I c o n f u s e d y o u , a g a i n , i t ' s n o t i n t e n t i o n a i , b u t --

COMMISSIONER BREATHITT: I was w r i t i n g 

and d i d n ' t -- w a s n ' t l i s t e n i n g as w e l l as I s h o u l d 

have . 

THE WITNESS: I ' v e been g u i l t y o f t h a t 

m y s e l f , ma'am, so -- we d i d an RFP w i t h r e g a r d t o t h e 

c o n v e r s i o n o f U n i t  and i n s i d e t h a t RFP was a 

r e q u e s t f o r and c o u l d be i n c l u d e d r e n e w a b l e e n e r g y 

b e i n g s u b m i t t e d t o a d d r e s s t h a t RFP. I n t h a t p r o c e s s , 

we r e c e i v e d a b s o l u t e l y n o t h i n g r e g a r d i n g r e n e w a b l e s . 

COMMISSIONER BREATHITT: Thank  

Mr. K u r t z 

MR. KURTZ: Thank y o u . 

COMMISSIONER BREATHITT: -- f o r l e t t i n g 

me I n t e r r u p t 

MR. KURTZ: No. 

Q Mr. P a u l e y ,  you t u r n t o page 2 o f 

 document t h a t I handed o u t t o y o u . Do you 

r e c o g n i z e  as a page f r o m K e n t u c k y Power's  

most r e c e n t FERC Form  

A S u b j e c t t o c h e c k , I t h i n k , y e s . 

Q Okay.  shows t h a t K e n t u c k y Power 

has  r e s i d e n t i a l c u s t o m e r s ,  

A  

Q And t h a t t h e c u s t o m e r s use 
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15,605 k i l o w a t t h o u r s p e r y e a r on a v e r a g e ? 

A Yes . 

Q And t h a t t h e a v e r a g e p r i c e t h a t t h e y pay 

i s 9.13 c e n t s p e r k i l o w a t t h o u r ? 

A A c c o r d i n g t o t h i s r e p o r t , y e s . 

Q Okay. I f you t u r n b a c k t o page 1, j u s t 

s i m p l e  k i l o w a t t h o u r s t i m e s t h e p r i c e . 

So y o u r r e s i d e n t i a l c u s t o m e r s pay, on a v e r a g e , a b o u t 

 p e r y e a r ? 

A S u b j e c t t o c h e c k . 

Q Okay. Page 4 o f t h i s i s Mr.  

E x h i b i t 1 t h a t we were r e f e r r i n g t o . Do you see t h a t 

l i n e 1, as I u n d e r s t a n d i t , t h a t ' s t h e amount o f money 

t h a t K e n t u c k y Power w i l l pay ecoPower i n t h e f i r s t 

y e a r u n d e r t h e c o n t r a c t ? 

A Yes . 

Q But t h e n you save o r a v o i d f u e l c o s t s o f 

12.78 m i l l i o n , and you save o r a v o i d c a p a c i t y c o s t s o f 

2.7 m i l l i o n , so t h a t t h e I n c r e m e n t a l r e v e n u e 

r e q u i r e m e n t  $35,000,151? $35,151,000? 

A Okay. 

Q I s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A T h a t ' s what t h i s r e p o r t i n d i c a t e s , y e s . 

Q So t h a t ' s a 7.02 p e r c e n t i n c r e a s e , 

i n c r e m e n t a l r e v e n u e r e q u i r e m e n t ? 
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A Yes . 

Q Okay. Now, ba c k t o page 1. I f t h e 

a v e r a g e r e s i d e n t i a l c u s t o m e r pays $1,425 p e r y e a r and 

t h e y g e t an i n c r e m e n t a l r e v e n u e r e q u i r e m e n t o f 

7.02 p e r c e n t , t h a t ' s a $100 i n c r e a s e t o y o u r 

r e s i d e n t i a l c u s t o m e r s p e r y e a r ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A T h a t ' s what t h i s i s i n d i c a t i n g . 

Q I s t h e r e any r e a s o n f o r -- t h a t t h e math 

i s i n c o r r e c t ? 

A I d o n ' t know t h a t i t i s . I guess I 

w o u l d e n c o u r a g e you , g i v e n t h e f a c t t h a t   

Mr. Wohnhas's t e s t i m o n y and a l l o f t h a t , t h a t t h o s e 

q u e s t i o n s be d i r e c t e d t o  because I c e r t a i n l y 

d o n ' t want t o m i s r e p r e s e n t a n y t h i n g t h a t he has 

s u b m i t t e d   

Q T h a t ' s  A s s u m i n g t h a t   a 

 I n c r e a s e on y o u r 140,000 

r e s i d e n t i a l c u s t o m e r s , i s t h a t s o m e t h i n g t h a t needs t o 

be c o n s i d e r e d when t h e Commission  w e i g h i n g t h e 

m e r i t s o f  t r a n s a c t i o n ? 

A I t h i n k t h a t ' s t h e p u r p o s e o f t h e r o l e 

o f t h e Commission  r e g a r d t o  We r e c o g n i z e 

t h e f a c t t h a t and I'm s o r r y t o be r e d u n d a n t w i t h 

r e g a r d t o t h i s , b u t r e n e w a b l e e n e r g y i s more 

e x p e n s i v e , and a l o t o f t h i n g s have t o be c o n s i d e r e d 
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w i t h r e g a r d t o t h i s p r o j e c t , and a number o f t h o s e , as 

I ' v e a l r e a d y i n d i c a t e d , w i t h t h e f a c t t h a t t h i s i s 

w i t h i n o u r s e r v i c e t e r r i t o r y , i t p r o v i d e s j o b s , i t 

p r o v i d e s e c onomic d e v e l o p m e n t o p p o r t u n i t i e s , i t has 

r e c e i v e d a l o t o f s u p p o r t , and I t h i n k -- l o o k i n g a t 

t h e b i g p i c t u r e , I t h i n k i t ' s a good o p p o r t u n i t y f o r 

my company  and f o r E a s t e r n K e n t u c k y . 

Now, t h e Commission has t o make t h a t 

d e c i s i o n , and I'm c e r t a i n t h e seven p e r c e n t i s p a r t o f 

t h e d a t a t h a t t h e y w i l l be l o o k i n g a t t o make t h a t . 

Q I n t h e l e t t e r s o f s u p p o r t , w h i c h I have 

r e a d , i n t h e r e c o r d , I n e v e r saw t h a t any o f t h e 

e l e c t e d o f f i c i a l s were t o l d a b o u t t h e r a t e i n c r e a s e on 

t h e c u s t o m e r base as a r e s u l t o f t h i s . I saw 

c o r r e s p o n d e n c e s a y i n g we s u p p o r t t h e j o b s and so 

f o r t h , b u t I d i d n ' t I n e v e r saw where t h e e l e c t e d 

o f f i c i a l s were i n f o r m e d a b o u t a h u n d r e d - d o l l a r - p e r -

y e a r r a t e i n c r e a s e on 140,000 c u s t o m e r s f o r 20 y e a r s . 

MR. GISH: Mr. C h a i r m a n , i f Mr. K u r t z 

c o u l d ask Mr. P a u l e y t o t e s t i f y a b o u t s p e c i f i c 

d o c u m e n t s , s p e c i f i c l e t t e r s , I ' d ask t h a t he p r o v i d e 

them t o h i m . 

MR. KURTZ: I ' l l -- t h a t ' s f i n e . 

I ' l l --

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: I s he aware o f 
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them? 

THE WITNESS: I'm aware o f them. 

MR. GISH: I b e l i e v e he's aware o f them, 

b u t t h e s p e c i f i c s o f them he w o u l d need t o have them 

i n f r o n t o f h i m , p l e a s e . 

Q You've t e s t i f i e d -- o r i t ' s t r u e , i s n ' t 

i t , t h a t y o u r s e r v i c e t e r r i t o r y i s a r e l a t i v e l y 

l o w - i n c o m e , r e l a t i v e l y i m p o v e r i s h e d a r e a , o r h i g h e r 

d e g r e e o f p o v e r t y t h a n most p a r t s o f K e n t u c k y ? 

A Yes, I have, and I t h i n k t h e a c t u a l w o r d 

I t h i n k t h e A p p a l a c h i a n R e g i o n a l Commission uses i n 

i d e n t i f y i n g t h a t i s e c o n o m i c a l l y d i s t r e s s e d . And I 

t h i n k t h a t ' s a n o t h e r r e a s o n t h i s was o f i n t e r e s t t o 

us, b e c a u s e i t c r e a t e d j o b s , i t c r e a t e d i n v e s t m e n t i n 

E a s t e r n K e n t u c k y , and t h a t ' s a l l p a r t o f t h e economic 

d e v e l o p m e n t a s p e c t . 

Q Of y o u r 140,000 r e s i d e n t i a l c u s t o m e r s , 

how many a r e i m p o v e r i s h e d , do you t h i n k ? 

A I w o u l d n o t be a b l e t o guess a t t h a t a t 

a l l . 

Q Would $100 a y e a r be a s i g n i f i c a n t 

amount o f money t o t h o s e p e o p l e ? 

A I c a n ' t answer t h a t . 

Q The -- t h i s i s j u s t s i m p l e math. 

A s s u m i n g t h a t -- l e t me j u s t ask you, you d o n ' t have 
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t o a g r e e t o i t , b u t o r maybe j u s t a g r e e t o t h e 

math. On page 6 o f 6, Mr. K o l l e n p u t i n t h e d e b t , t h e 

d e b t -- o r , e x c u s e me, t h e e q u i t y a d d i t i o n b e c a u s e 

t h i s w o u l d be t r e a t e d as d e b t , and he came up w i t h 

  

A s s u m i n g 7.84 p e r c e n t i s t h e r e a l r a t e 

i m p a c t , w o u l d you a g r e e t h a t  t h e 

i n c r e a s e t o consumers w o u l d be $111 p e r y e a r , n o t 100? 

A W e l l , b a s e d upon what you've shown me 

and b a s e d upon page 1, i t w o u l d c e r t a i n l y i n d i c a t e 

t h a t . B u t , a g a i n , I'm n o t h i d i n g . I'm t r y i n g t o be 

t r a n s p a r e n t f r o m t h e s t a n d p o i n t r e n e w a b l e s a r e a t a 

h i g h e r c o s t . I ' l l l e t Mr. Wohnhas, i f y o u ' d l i k e , be 

more d e t a i l e d w i t h you on t h a t , b e c a u s e --

Q Okay. 

A -- t h i s i s a r e f l e c t i o n on h i s 

 

Q W i l l you t u r n t o page 7 o f y o u r d i r e c t 

t e s t i m o n y ? I want t o ask you a b o u t t h e  a s p e c t o f 

t h i s . 

A I'm t h e r e . 

Q On l i n e 14 you say, ( R e a d i n g ) A c c o r d i n g 

t o ecoPower, t h e f a c i l i t y i s e x p e c t e d t o g e n e r a t e 

a p p r o x i m a t e l y 230 c o n s t r u c t i o n j o b s o v e r t h e t w o - y e a r 

c o n s t r u c t i o n p e r i o d , 30 f u l l - t i m e j o b s a t t h e power 
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p l a n t , and  225 t i m b e r and t r u c k i n g -

r e l a t e d j o b s . 

D i d you v e r i f y t h o s e numbers t h a t 

ecoPower p r o v i d e d you? 

A I d i d n o t do a s t u d y t o v e r i f y t h o s e 

numbers. Our r e l a t i o n s h i p w i t h them w i t h r e g a r d t o 

t h i s was t h e f a c t t h a t i t was a new o p p o r t u n i t y , 

e c o n omic d e v e l o p m e n t o p p o r t u n i t y . O b v i o u s l y t h e r e 

were g o i n g t o be j o b s a s s o c i a t e d w i t h i t , and we 

f o c u s e d on c o s t s and t h e p r o t e c t i o n o f o u r company i n 

t e r m s o f d i v e r s i f y i n g a p o r t f o l i o and j u m p i n g i n t o t h e 

 

 So how do you -- i f t h e  a s p e c t o f i t 

i s p r e t t y i m p o r t a n t , why d i d n ' t you v e r i f y ecoPower's 

j o b s t a t e m e n t s ? 

A W e l l , i n my c a r e e r w i t h K e n t u c k y Power 

Company, as w e l l as t h e o t h e r p l a c e s I ' v e w o r k e d 

w i t h i n t h e AEP s y s t e m , I ' v e been e x p o s e d a l o t t o 

economic d e v e l o p m e n t , and w i t h r e g a r d t o e c o n o m i c 

d e v e l o p m e n t p r o j e c t s and a l l t h a t , t h e r e ' s a c e r t a i n 

amount o f i t e m s t h a t a r e g i v e n w i t h r e g a r d , i f y o u ' r e 

g o i n g t o c o n s t r u c t and b u i l d a new f a c i l i t y l i k e 

ecoPower i s , t h e r e ' s g o i n g t o be j o b s a s s o c i a t e d w i t h 

t h a t , t h e c o n s t r u c t i o n j o b s as w e l l as t h e f u l l - t i m e 

j o b s t h a t e x i s t a t t h a t l o c a t i o n when t h a t 
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c o n s t r u c t i o n a s p e c t i s c o m p l e t e d . O b v i o u s l y t h e r e ' s 

g o i n g t o be  j o b s w i t h r e g a r d t o m o v i n g 

t h e f u e l f r o m one s i t e t o t h e o t h e r . 

So I w a s n ' t q u e s t i o n i n g t h e e x a c t n e s s o f 

t h e i r numbers, b u t I r e c o g n i z e , f r o m an eco n o m i c 

d e v e l o p m e n t p e r s p e c t i v e and j o b s r e l a t e d t o t h a t , t h a t 

t h a t c o u l d be a p r e t t y good a s s e s s m e n t o f what t h e y 

were d o i n g . 

Q Now, Mr. Wohnhas c a l c u l a t e d t h a t t h e 

i n c r e m e n t a l r e v e n u e r e q u i r e m e n t o r t h e added i n c r e a s e 

i s $35,151,000. T h a t ' s h i s E x h i b i t 1. A r e t h e j o b s 

t h a t ecoPower i s g o i n g t o c r e a t e more o r l e s s t h a n 

$35 m i l l i o n ? 

A I have no i d e a what t h o s e j o b s a r e g o i n g 

t o c r e a t e . I do know, even f r o m t e s t i m o n y f r o m KIUC, 

t h e r e ' s an eco n o m i c d e v e l o p m e n t i m p a c t on t h e r e g i o n 

w i t h r e g a r d t o t h e s e . 

Q Now, t h i s 225 t i m b e r and t r u c k i n g -

r e l a t e d , a r e t h o s e a l l i n c r e m e n t a l , brand-new j o b s , o r 

a r e some o f t h o s e j o b s t h a t a r e a l r e a d y t h e r e t h a t --

i n o t h e r w o r d s , some o f t h e s e -- do you know i f some 

o f t h e s e t r u c k i n g j o b s , f o r e x a m p l e , a r e d o u b l e 

c o u n t e d o r a r e n o t i n c r e m e n t a l ? I n o t h e r words -- l e t 

me j u s t back up. P i n e M o u n t a i n Lumber i s one o f t h e 

c o s p o n s o r s o f t h i s t r a n s a c t i o n ? 
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A I t h i n k t h a t ' s c o r r e c t , s u b j e c t t o 

 

Q And t h e y have t o d i s p o s e o f t h e i r 

s a w d u s t and b a r k and wood c h i p s a l r e a d y , d o n ' t t h e y ? 

A I presume t h e y do. I d o n ' t know. 

Q Do you know i f some o f t h e s e 225 

t r u c k i n g j o b s a r e , i n s t e a d o f d r i v i n g s o u t h t o d e l i v e r 

t h a t s a w d u s t p l a c e A, t h e y ' l l j u s t d r i v e n o r t h and 

d e l i v e r i t t o t h e power p l a n t so t h a t t h e r e ' s n o t any 

i n c r e m e n t a l j o b g r o w t h o r n o t 

A I w o u l d have no answer w i t h r e g a r d t o 

wh a t ' s new and w h a t ' s i n c r e m e n t a l . I can presume t h a t 

t h e 30 j o b s a t t h e f a c i l i t y when t h e c o m p l e t i o n i s 

new, b u t t h e t r u c k e r s and a l l t h a t , I c a n ' t answer 

 

Q W e l l , i f t h e y ' r e n o t new and 

i n c r e m e n t a l , t h e n t h e y a r e n o t r e a l l y new j o b s , by 

 

A W e l l , n o t b e i n g a b l e t o answer, I c a n ' t 

answer t h a t q u e s t i o n , so --

Q W e l l , i f t h e y ' r e l e t me j u s t s a y t h a t 

i f t h e y ' r e n o t new, t h e n t h e r e ' s no n e t b e n e f i t ? 

A A g a i n , I c a n ' t answer t h a t q u e s t i o n . 

Q W e l l , I mean, t h i s i s a c o n t r a c t -- j u s t 

on t h e p u b l i c i n f o r m a t i o n , i t ' s a b i l l i o n - d o l l a r 
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c o n t r a c t y o u ' r e a s k i n g consumers t o pay f o r . Jobs i s 
one o f t h e b i g d r i v i n g p o i n t s , and y e t you d o n ' t 
r e a l l y know much a b o u t t h e j o b s . 

A I t h i n k as I i n d i c a t e d e a r l i e r , my 

e x p e r i e n c e w i t h e c o nomic d e v e l o p m e n t r e f l e c t s t h e f a c t 

t h a t any t y p e o f a p p l i c a t i o n l i k e t h i s w i t h r e g a r d t o 

a new f a c i l i t y and what t h e y a r e d o i n g p r o v i d e s j o b s , 

p r o v i d e s o p p o r t u n i t y , and p r o v i d e s income i n t o t h a t 

p a r t i c u l a r a r e a . Whether o r n o t a t r u c k d r i v i n g j o b 

t h a t ' s l i s t e d h e r e i s new o r -- I c a n ' t a d d r e s s t h a t . 

MR. KURTZ: I t h i n k -- Mr. O v e r s t r e e t , 

i s t h i s document  I ' d j u s t as soon n o t 

go i n t o c o n f i d e n t i a l s e s s i o n . 

MR. GISH: Yeah, i t i s . 

MR. OVERSTREET: Yeah, i t i s . 

MR. KURTZ: I t i s ? 

MR. GISH: Yes. 

MR. KURTZ: Okay. Your Honor, c o u l d we 

go i n t o c o n f i d e n t i a l s e s s i o n ? 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: Anyone who has n o t 

s i g n e d t h e  a g r e e m e n t s h o u l d l e a v e now. 

 t e s t i m o n y o f G r e g o r y G. 

P a u l e y h e a r d f r o m 10:43 a.m. t o 10:59 a.m.) 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: Okay. 

  * 
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By Ms. Hans: 

Q Mr. P a u l e y , good m o r n i n g . 

A Good m o r n i n g . 

Q I f you have any t r o u b l e h e a r i n g me, 

p l e a s e l e t me know. 

A And l i k e w i s e . 

   we -- v e r y good, s i r . I f I c o u l d 

11 have you t u r n t o KIUC E x h i b i t 3, s i m p l y f o r s peed, 

page 4 o f 6. And s u b j e c t t o c h e c k , I b e l i e v e t h a t 

t h i s , and c o r r e c t me i f I'm w r o n g , i s Ra n i e Wohnhas's 

E x h i b i t 1 t h a t was f i l e d s u b j e c t t o y o u r -- w i t h y o u r 

15 a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

 A I'm s o r r y . I d o n ' t t h i n k I have t h a t . 

 Q I ' m s o r r y . 

18 A Oh. 

 Q KIUC 3. And i f i t ' s s p e e d i e r , I can --

20 we can r e f e r e n c e t h e a p p l i c a t i o n , b u t --

  Why d o n ' t you show me t h e f a c e o f i t so 

22 I can --

23 Q I t ' s --

 MR. OVERSTREET: I ' l l do i t . 

MS. HANS: Okay. Thank y o u . No 

12 

13 

14 

25 
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p r o b l e m . 

A I d i d n o t number m i n e . I'm s o r r y . 

Q Not a p r o b l e m . 

A T h i s i s t h e 6 -- t h i s one. 

MR. OVERSTREET: Yes. 

A I'm   

Q Okay. Thank y o u , s i r . And I u n d e r s t a n d 

t h a t some o f t h e -- some o f t h e s e q u e s t i o n s , i f you 

need t o r e f e r t o Mr. Wohnhas, I u n d e r s t a n d , b u t i n 

g e n e r a l , as you u n d e r s t a n d t h i s document, t h i s i s t h e 

t o t a l  r e v e n u e I n c r e a s e e s t i m a t e d by t h e Company 

as a r e s u l t o f t h e REPA; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A T h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q Okay. And t h e Company had had o c c a s i o n 

t o s u p p l e m e n t and amend i t s a p p l i c a t i o n , i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t , and f i l e s u p p l e m e n t a l t e s t i m o n y I n f o r m a t i o n 

  case? 

A S u b j e c t t o c h e c k , I b e l i e v e so. 

 C o r r e c t . And s u b j e c t t o t h a t 

s u p p l e m e n t a l , t h e Company I s s u e d and p u b l i s h e d n o t i c e 

o f  h e a r i n g t o d a y ;  t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A Yes . 

MS. HANS: And, C o u n s e l , t h a t ' s a r a t h e r 

l o n g document, so I want t o make s u r e I'm g e t t i n g i t 

c o r r e c t . Do you have a copy o f t h e n o t i c e t h a t you 
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c o u l d s u p p l y , t h e -- what was f i l e d w i t h t h e 

Commission on -- I ' v e o n l y g o t a p a r t i a l copy h e r e . 

F i l e d w i t h t h e Commission on A u g u s t t h e 1 6 t h r e g a r d i n g 

t h e t a r i f f BER? 

MR. GISH: We do n o t have copy o f t h a t . 

MS. HANS: You d o n ' t have a copy o f 

t h a t ? Okay. W e l l , I -- I can w a i t --

MR. OVERSTREET: We may have i t . W a i t 

one m i n u t e . 

MS. HANS: S u r e . G r e a t . No p r o b l e m . I 

want t o make s u r e t h a t he has t h e c o r r e c t r e f e r e n c e . 

MR. OVERSTREET: Ms. Hans, a r e you j u s t 

g o i n g t o ask  q u e s t i o n s a b o u t t h e pages --

MS. HANS: I am j u s t g o i n g t o ask  

a b o u t t h e t a b l e o f t h e n o t i c e . T h a t ' s a l l --

MR OVERSTREET: Then we --

MS. HANS: -- t h a t he w o u l d need i n 

f r o n t o f  

•MR. OVERSTREET:  Then we do have t h a t . 

MS. HANS: Uh-huh. V e r y good,  

THE WITNESS: Thank y o u , s i r . 

Q And j u s t f o r o u r r e f e r e n c e , I'm 

r e f e r r i n g t o a t a b l e t h a t f o l l o w s y o u r n o t i c e t h a t 

a d d r e s s e s t h e p r o p o s e d r a t e i m p a c t , and t h i s i s , o f 

c o u r s e , w i t h r e s p e c t t o t h e t a r i f f t h a t w i l l be 
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a s s i g n e d i n t h i s c a s e , t h e bi o m a s s t a r i f f , w h i c h I 

know t h a t Mr. Wohnhas e x p l a i n e d   t e s t i m o n y and 

may be a d d r e s s e d l a t e r , b u t I'm j u s t g o i n g t o 

r e f e r e n c e t h i s t a b l e . 

Do you have t h a t i n f r o n t o f y o u , 

Mr. P a u l e y ? 

A I b e l i e v e I do. 

Q And  you know, on t h a t f i r s t   

I n d i c a t e s , t h e v e r y f i r s t  and c o l u m n , c u s t o m e r 

  I s t h a t w o u l d t h a t c o r r e c t l y be 

t h e r e s i d e n t i a l ? 

A Yes . 

 And i n t h e s e c o n d t a b l e b e l o w t h a t i s 

t h e a v e r a g e m o n t h l y b i l l , and i t a l s o s t a r t s w i t h t h e 

 o f  i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A T h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q And f o l l o w i n g o v e r one co l u m n and one 

l i n e , t h e a v e r a g e c u s t o m e r usage amount, t h i s i s -- i s 

i t c o r r e c t t h a t t h e a v e r a g e c u s t o m e r usage u s e d t o 

e s t i m a t e t h i s , s u b j e c t t o c h e c k , o f c o u r s e , was 

1,374 k i l o w a t t s p e r month? S o r r y . K i l o w a t t h o u r s p e r 

 ? 

A T h a t ' s what i t i s s h o w i n g , y e s . 

Q V e r y good. And c o u l d you move o v e r , 

t h e n , t o t h e a v e r a g e b i l l i n g change? 
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1 A Yes . 

2  And t h a t I n d i c a t e s , s u b j e c t t o  

3 $10.40? 

4 A Yes . 

5  And t h e a v e r a g e p e r c e n t change w o u l d be 

6   on  

7 A Yes . 

8 Q So i t i s t h e c u s t o m -- i t i s t h e 

9 Company's e s t i m a t e t h a t t h e REPA's i m p a c t on 

10  s p e c i f i c a l l y t h e  w o u l d be 

11  p e r c e n t o r r o u g h l y $124.80 p e r y e a r ? 

12 A I t h i n k s u b j e c t t o c h e c k , b u t w o u l d 

13 e n c o u r a g e you t o t a l k t o Mr. Wohnhas a b o u t t h i s one. 

14 Q I ' l l do so. Thank you. 

15 Mr. P a u l e y , you've t e s t i f i e d t h a t you 

16 were i n v o l v e d i n t h e n e g o t i a t i o n s b e t w e e n y o u r company 

17 and ecoPower and t h a t t h o s e p r e d a t e d t h e REPA t h a t was 

18 u l t i m a t e l y s i g n e d  2013;  t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

19 A Yes . 

20 Q Okay. Would t h e ecoPower p r o j e c t have 

21 been e l i g i b l e f o r f e d e r a l i n c e n t i v e s o r s u b s i d i e s 

22 w h i c h a r e no l o n g e r a v a i l a b l e t o t h e p r o j e c t now? 

23 A I t h i n k d u r i n g t h e n e g o t i a t i o n s o f  

24 I t h i n k t h e r e was some d i s c u s s i o n -- d i s c u s s i o n s a b o u t 

25 t h a t t h a t Mr. G o d f r e y c o u l d -- w o u l d be a b l e t o 
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a d d r e s s w i t h you s p e c i f i c a l l y t h e i s s u e s t h a t t h e y 

were c o n c e r n e d a b o u t w i t h r e g a r d t o t i m i n g on t h e i r 

 

Q I f you know, and I'm f i n e t o r e f e r t h i s 

t o Mr. G o d f r e y , b u t i f you know, i s i t y o u r 

 t h a t a t l e a s t some o f t h o s e f e d e r a l 

i n c e n t i v e s and s u b s i d i e s e x p i r e d b e f o r e you were a b l e 

t o engage i n t h i s f i n a l REPA --

A I t ' s --

Q -- b e f o r e t h e Company c o m m i t t e d t o t h e 

f i n a l REPA? 

A I t  my  s u b j e c t t o 

che c k , t h a t t h e y d i d m i s s o u t on some o f t h o s e . 

Q Mr. P a u l e y , w o u l d you c h a r a c t e r i z e t h e 

ecoPower f a c i l i t y as s h o v e l r e a d y ? 

A W e l l , I t h i n k t h e y have a l r e a d y done 

some work t h e r e , and w i t h r e g a r d t o s t a r t i n g t h e 

p r o j e c t , and i f I'm n o t s u r e what you mean by 

s h o v e l r e a d y . I mean, i s i t r e a d y t o f l i p t h e s w i t c h 

and t u r n on? I d o n ' t t h i n k so. But t h a t ' s what I 

know has —   t h e r e . 

Q I f I c o u l d have you r e f e r e n c e , and I can 

pass i t o u t i f — 

MS. HANS: I n f a c t , l e t me j u s t go ahead 

and do t h i s , pass t h i s o u t as AG i f I can have 
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marked have t h i s marked as AG E x h i b i t , H e a r i n g 

E x h i b i t 1. 

Q A f t e r you've had an o p p o r t u n i t y t o 

r e v i e w t h i s , Mr. P a u l e y ,   K e n t u c k y Power's 

r e s p o n s e t o a q u e s t i o n t h a t was p o s e d d u r i n g t h e 

June 2 7 t h , 2013, i n f o r m a l c o n f e r e n c e ? 

A I b e l i e v e  how t h e document  

t i t l e d . 

Q And does t h e Company -- t h e Company i n 

t h i s document s u p p l e m e n t e d t h e r e c o r d and a d v i s e d t h e 

Commission t h a t t h e PJM System I m p a c t S t u d y f o r t h e 

ecoPower p r o j e c t i s due on September 3 0 t h , 2013; i s 

t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A T h a t i s how t h e document r e p r e s e n t s 

t h a t , y e s . 

Q Based on y o u r f a m i l i a r i t y w i t h t h e 

p r o c e s s o f b r i n g i n g on new g e n e r a t i o n w i t h i n PJM, 

w h e t h e r r e n e w a b l e o r o t h e r w i s e , i f t h e r e ' s n o t been 

i f  I m p a c t s t u d y  s t i l l p e n d i n g , does t h a t 

change  any way y o u r  o f  

p r o j e c t as r e a d y o r s h o v e l r e a d y , however you w o u l d 

want t o c h a r a c t e r i z e ? I s t h a t -- does t h a t change 

t h a t d y n a m ic a t a l l ? 

A I d o n ' t t h i n k t h a t w o u l d o r we w o u l d n o t 

have s i g n e d t h e REPA. 
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Q So where i s , t o y o u r and w i t h i n y o u r 

k n o w l e d g e , where i s t h e p r o j e c t w i t h i n t h e PJM queue 

f o r new g e n e r a t i o n ? 

A T h a t I do n o t know. I c a n n o t answer 

 

Q Based on y o u r  o f t h e REPA, 

s i r , and I'm s u r e you've r e v i e w e d i t , i s i t n o t t r u e 

t h a t a c o n d i t i o n p r e c e d e n t f o r K e n t u c k y Power Company 

t o f u l f i l l t h e t o f u l f i l l t h e REPA w o u l d be t h e 

Commission's a p p r o v a l o f t h e M i t c h e l l  t r a n s f e r  

Case Number 2012-00578? 

A T h a t  c o r r e c t . 

MS. HANS: Okay. No f u r t h e r q u e s t i o n s 

a t t h i s t i m e . Thank y o u , Mr. P a u l e y . 

THE WITNESS: You' r e welcome. 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONC: Mr. Nguyen. 

MR. NCUYEN: Yes. Thank  Your 
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By Mr. Nguyen: 

 Good m o r n i n g , Mr. P a u l e y . 

A Good m o r n i n g . 

Q Can you p l e a s e r e f e r t o K e n t u c k y Power's 

r e s p o n s e t o i t e m number 23 o f KIUC's f i r s t s e t o f 

I n f o r m a t i o n r e q u e s t s ? 

A One moment, p l e a s e . 

 S u r e . 

MR. CISH: Mr. Nguyen, can you r e p e a t 

t h e number? 

MR. NCUYEN: KIUC's f i r s t d a t a  

number 23 

MR. CISH: Thank y o u . 

A I t i s i n f r o n t o f me. 

Q Okay. I n t h e r e s p o n s e t o t h i s q u e s t i o n 

you s t a t e t h a t K e n t u c k y Power has no c o n t r o l o v e r when 

ecoPower w i l l s u b m i t i t s f a c i l i t y o r power i n t o t h e 

d a i l y PJM m a r k e t ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A Okay. L e t me r e a d t h a t b ecause I'm n o t 

s u r e I'm e q u a t i n g -- o r -- okay . Now ask y o u r 

q u e s t i o n a g a i n , p l e a s e . 

Q Okay. 
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1 A   

2 Q Yeah. W e l l , i n r e s p o n s e you s t a t e d t h a t 

3 K e n t u c k y Power w o u l d have no c o n t r o l o v e r when 

4 ecoPower w i l l s u b m i t t h e power g e n e r a t e d f r o m t h a t 

5 f a c i l i t y i n t o t h e d a l l y PJM m a r k e t . 

6 A T h a t  c o r r e c t . 

7 Q Okay. So my q u e s t i o n   ecoPower 

8 or ecoPower be b i d d i n g f a c i l i t y ' s power i n t o t h e PJM 

9 m a r k e t o r w i l l K e n t u c k y Power be d o i n g t h a t ? Do you 

10 know? 

11 A We a r e j u s t p u r c h a s i n g t h e power t h a t 

12 t h e y g e n e r a t e and s u p p l y t o u s . I c a n ' t answer t h a t 

13 q u e s t i o n a b o u t b i d d i n g  t h e PJM. 

14  Okay. So do you know how t h e -- t h e 

15 m e c h a n i c s o f how t h a t w o u l d w o r k , t h e l o g i s t i c s o f 

16 A No, I do n o t . 

17 Q Okay. Do you know who w o u l d --

18 A  r e g a r d t o  REPA, no. 

19 Q Okay. Would anyone e l s e know? 

20 A You m i g h t ask Mr. Wohnhas t h a t . 

21 Q L e t me go t o y o u r r e b u t t a l  

22 page 2, s t a r t i n g a t  number 19, and i t f l o w s 

23 i n t o 

24 A I b e l i e v e I'm t h e r e . 

25 Q  
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A You s a i d page 2? 

Q Yes, s i r . S t a r t a t l i n e -- a t  19. 

The s e n t e n c e s a y s , ( R e a d i n g ) The eco n o m i c d e v e l o p m e n t 

b e n e f i t s o f t h e   t h e f o r m o f c o n s t r u c t i o n 

j o b s , o p e r a t i n g j o b s , t i m b e r and t r u c k i n g I n d u s t r y 

j o b s , and I n c r e a s e d l o c a l t a x r e v e n u e s  be l o c a t e d 

i n K e n t u c k y . 

Have t h e s e e c o n o m i c b e n e f i t s been 

 

A What do you mean by  Have 

we done an a n a l y s i s o f them? 

Q W e l l 

A I mean — 

Q -- an a n a l y s i s o r has t h e r e been any 

numbers a s s o c i a t e d  t h e f o r m s o f c o n s t r u c t i o n 

j o b s , t h e o p e r a t i n g j o b s , t h e t i m b e r and --

A I guess I ' l l a t t e m p t t o answer t h a t 

q u e s t i o n  way: From t h e s t a n d p o i n t o f l o o k i n g a t 

 f r o m t h e q u e s t i o n s t h a t were d i r e c t e d t o -- a t me 

t h r o u g h KIUC, we r e c o g n i z e d t h a t t h i s was an 

o p p o r t u n i t y w i t h r e g a r d t o ecoPower t o i n v e s t i n 

E a s t e r n K e n t u c k y , e s t a b l i s h j o b s , and t h e i n f o r m a t i o n 

t h a t t h e y p r o v i d e d w i t h r e g a r d t o what t h o s e j o b s p a i d 

and t h e b e n e f i t t h a t  w o u l d have, b a s e d on my 

economic d e v e l o p m e n t e x p e r i e n c e and a l l t h a t , was 
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p r e t t y c o n s i s t e n t w i t h s u c h f a c i l i t i e s . 

Q Okay. T u r n now t o page 4 and 5 o f y o u r 

r e b u t t a l t e s t i m o n y , p a r t i c u l a r l y a t t h e b o t t o m o f page 

4 and t h e t o p o f page 5. I n r e s p o n s e t o Dr.  

economic a n a l y s e s o f t h e ecoPower f a c i l i t y , you s t a t e 

t h a t , you know, when compared t o t h e r e a l i s t i c PJM 

m a r k e t a l t e r n a t i v e and u s i n g Dr. Coomes's number, t h e 

ecoPower f a c i l i t y  p r o d u c e an e s t i m a t e d a n n u a l 

i n c r e a s e i n r e g i o n a l e a r n i n g s o f 6.4 m i l l i o n , an 

e s t i m a t e d t a x b e n e f i t s o f $476,000. 

I s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A T h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q Okay. What's y o u r b a s i s o f s u p p o r t f o r 

t h e i n c r e a s e i n r e g i o n a l e a r n i n g s and t h e e s t i m a t e d 

t a x b e n e f i t s a s s o c i a t e d  t h e ecoPower f a c i l i t y 

when compared t o PJM m a r k e t a l t e r n a t i v e s ? 

A I t h i n k t h e s e were s t a t i s t i c s t h a t were 

g i v e n by Dr. Coomes. Maybe I'm n o t -- am I 

p r o n o u n c i n g t h a t c o r r e c t l y ? 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: Coomes. 

THE WITNESS: Coomes. Okay. Thank you 

v e r y much. 

A I t h i n k t h a t ' s t h e b a s i s f o r i t . 

Q So t h e s e numbers, t h e r e g i o n a l e a r n i n g s , 

t h e i n c r e a s e i n r e g i o n a l e a r n i n g s o f 6.4 m i l l i o n and 
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e s t i m a t e d , a r e t h o s e a n n u a l numbers, do you know? 

A S u b j e c t t o c h e c k . 

Q Okay. But t h e b a s i s f o r y o u r 

r e s p o n s e — 

A H i s numbers. 

Q -- i s Dr. Coomes's numbers? 

A Yes . 

Q Okay. Was t h e r e a nywhere i n h i s 

a n a l y s e s , c o u l d you d i r e c t me t o , t h a t --

A No, I c a n ' t . 

Q C o u l d you p r o v i d e i t as a p o s t - h e a r i n g 

d a t a r e q u e s t , o r i f we have i t --

MR. GISH: Mr. Nguyen, i t ' s on page 3 o f 

Mr. Coomes's t e s t i m o n y . 

MR. NGUYEN: Okay. Okay. Thank y o u . 

Q I d o n ' t know i f you d i r e c t l y a d d r e s s e d 

t h i s o r n o t , maybe you have, b u t d i d you c o n f i r m t h a t 

K e n t u c k y Power d i d n o t p e r f o r m any s o r t o f eco n o m i c 

a n a l y s e s  r e s p e c t t o t h e ecoPower f a c i l i t y ? 

A No f o r m a l e c o nomic a n a l y s i s was 

 

Q Ckay. Why d i d n ' t K e n t u c k y Power p e r f o r m 

any economic a n a l y s i s ? 

A W e l l ,   a p r e t t y u n i q u e 

o p p o r t u n i t y  r e g a r d t o what was p r e s e n t e d t o us, I 
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t h i n k o v e r -- a t l e a s t f r o m t h e s t a n d p o i n t o f my 

p r e s i d e n c y when t h e y a p p r o a c h e d me i n 2010, and t h e 

r e c o g n i t i o n o f t h e o p p o r t u n i t y t o t a k e some a c t i o n 

w i t h r e g a r d t o economic d e v e l o p m e n t j o b s i n an 

e c o n o m i c a l l y d i s t r e s s e d a r e a . 

And f r o m my economic d e v e l o p m e n t 

b a c k g r o u n d , i t seemed p r u d e n t t o go ahead and p u r s u e 

t h i s t o see i f i t was a good t h i n g . And i t ' s t h e --

t h e o p p o r t u n i t y t o i n v e s t i n E a s t e r n K e n t u c k y and 

u t i l i z e  f o r t h e d i v e r s i t y o f my p o r t f o l i o I t h i n k 

h e l p e d me -- h e l p e d me r e c o g n i z e we need t o c o n t i n u e 

t a l k s on  and see what we can do. 

And so f r o m t h a t p e r s p e c t i v e , f r o m an 

econ o m i c d e v e l o p m e n t p e r s p e c t i v e , I t h i n k as 

m e n t i o n e d , b r o u g h t o u t t h e r e $9 m i l l i o n , t h a t ' s money 

 E a s t e r n K e n t u c k y t h a t was n o t t h e r e b e f o r e , and 

E a s t e r n K e n t u c k y needs j o b s . 

Q Okay. When you t a l k a b o u t I n v e s t m e n t  

K e n t u c k y Power's s e r v i c e t e r r i t o r y --

A Sur e . 

Q -- w o u l d  be  t o say t h a t b e f o r e 

you make t h a t I n v e s t m e n t , t o c o n d u c t some s o r t o f 

a n a l y s i s t o d e t e r m i n e what t y p e o f r e t u r n s you w o u l d 

have on t h a t I n v e s t m e n t ? 

A Su r e . I t h i n k a l l t h a t ' s t h e r e , b u t you 
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have  o t h e r m a t t e r s w i t h r e g a r d t o t h a t as 

w e l l . T h i s was -- you know, t h e r e ' s n o t a w h o l e l o t 

o f r e n e w a b l e o p t i o n s o u t t h e r e f o r us t o l o o k a t . 

T h i s was b r o u g h t t o u s . We l o o k e d a t j o b s . We l o o k e d 

a t t h e b e n e f i t t h a t  w o u l d have f o r t h e economy o f 

E a s t e r n K e n t u c k y . And you w e i g h a l o t o f t h i n g s  

r e g a r d t o m a k i n g a d e c i s i o n on  and t h e u l t i m a t e 

was we d e c i d e d  was w o r t h p u r s u i n g and we t h o u g h t 

 was good f o r E a s t e r n K e n t u c k y . 

The  o f t h e p o r t f o l i o  

v e r y I m p o r t a n t t o n o t o n l y my u t i l i t y b u t o t h e r 

u t i l i t i e s , and even t h o u g h t h e r e ' s n o t an RPS, t h e r e 

has been a c t i o n  t h e K e n t u c k y s t a t e l e g i s l a t u r e 

t a l k i n g a b o u t r e n e w a b l e s and a l l o f t h a t , and  

p r o v i d e d me an o p p o r t u n i t y  r e g a r d t o a d d r e s s i n g 

t h a t . The I n v e s t m e n t  t h e f a c t t h a t I'm p u r c h a s i n g 

a p r o d u c t t h a t ' s p r o d u c e d i n K e n t u c k y , i n my s e r v i c e 

t e r r i t o r y , and I t h i n k t h a t was p a r t o f t h e r e t u r n , i f 

you w i l l . 

Q D i d you q u a n t i f y what t h a t r e t u r n w o u l d 

be? 

A D i d n o t q u a n t i f y . 

Q I n t h e absence o f t h e s e e c o nomic 

b e n e f i t s a s s o c i a t e d  t h e ecoPower f a c i l i t y , w o u l d 

K e n t u c k y Power have f i l e d o r e n t e r e d  t h e 
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 ? 

A W i t h t h e absence? 

Q W i t h o u t t h e a s s o c i a t e d e c o nomic 

b e n e f i t s --

A S u r e . 

Q -- a t t a c h e d t o t h e f a c i l i t y , b e i n g 

l o c a t e d I n s i d e K e n t u c k y Power's s e r v i c e t e r r i t o r y , 

w o u l d --

A I t h i n k I -- I'm s o r r y . 

Q Would K e n t u c k y Power -- ba s e d upon t h e 

c o n t r a c t u a l p r o v i s i o n s t h a t have been f i l e d , w o u l d 

K e n t u c k y Power e n t e r i n t o t h e c o n t r a c t ? 

A I guess t h a t ' s an  q u e s t i o n and a l l o f 

t h a t . I d o n ' t know t h a t we w o u l d o r we w o u l d n ' t , b u t 

t h e w h o l e p i c t u r e o f t h i s p a r t i c u l a r p r o j e c t , l o o k i n g 

a t i t f r o m t h e i t s p r o j e c t a l l by I t s e l f and t h e 

b e n e f i t s f o r a l l  what p e r s u a d e d me t o c o n t i n u e t h e 

p r o c e s s and e n t e r  t h e a g r e e m e n t . 

Q Okay. 

A Whether --  was c e r t a i n l y s i g n i f i c a n t 

t h a t   t h e b a c k y a r d o f o u r s e r v i c e t e r r i t o r y , 

c e r t a i n l y s i g n i f i c a n t o f j o b s f o r E a s t e r n K e n t u c k i a n s , 

and we knew -- we knew r e n e w a b l e s were more e x p e n s i v e , 

b u t  p a r t o f t h e G o v e r n o r ' s   an 

o p p o r t u n i t y f o r me t o I n c r e a s e my l i t t l e  o f 
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c u s h i o n t h a t I have w i t h r e g a r d t o what h o p e f u l l y  

be g r o w t h  E a s t e r n K e n t u c k y and t o h e l p p e o p l e have 

j o b s t h a t do n o t have them now. 

Q But w o u l d i t be  t o say t h a t t h o s e 

b e n e f i t s come a t a p r i c e , and t h e p r i c e  what 

K e n t u c k y Power's r a t e p a y e r s  be b e a r i n g ? 

A T h e y ' r e -- I guess I'm g o i n g t o be 

c a r e f u l how you c a t e g o r i z e b e n e f i t s come a t a p r i c e . 

I mean, any t y p e o f p u r c h a s e power a g r e e m e n t t h a t you 

have  g o i n g t o be a t a p r i c e , b u t I t h i n k you have 

t o l o o k a t t h e w h o l e p i c t u r e f r o m t h e e c o n o m i c 

b e n e f i t s t h a t  b r i n g s t o E a s t e r n K e n t u c k y . 

Q Okay. When you m e n t i o n e d t h a t t h e  

Sandy 1 RFP was I s s u e d , t h e r e were no r e s p o n s e s f r o m 

any r e n e w a b l e s ? 

A Not a one. 

 Was t h e RFP, I gu e s s , s u b m i t t e d t o 

any d i r e c t l y t o any r e n e w a b l e g e n e r a t o r s ? 

A I b e l i e v e t h e  o f RFPs 

goes o u t on a b r o a d b a s i s and t h e n p e o p l e r e s p o n d t o 

 I d o n ' t know t h a t you m a l l RFPs t o s p e c i f i c 

p e o p l e and say r e s p o n d . Anybody who had r e n e w a b l e s 

w o u l d have had an o p p o r t u n i t y t o r e s p o n d t o t h a t . 

Q C o u l d K e n t u c k y Power -- c o u l d have 

I s s u e d an RFP s p e c i f i c a l l y f o r r e n e w a b l e r e s o u r c e s ? 
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A On t h i s p a r t i c u l a r case? 

 W e l l --

A I mean, i s t h a t what y o u ' r e d r i v i n g t o ? 

Q I'm g o i n g b a c k t o t h e p o i n t where y o u ' r e 

t r y i n g t o d i v e r s i f y t h e g e n e r a t i o n p o r t f o l i o . 

A S u r e . 

Q And t o hedge a g a i n s t f u t u r e 

e n v i r o n m e n t a l --

A Uh-huh. 

 -- r e g u l a t i o n s , and you p o i n t t o t h e 

f a c t t h e r e were no r e n e w a b l e r e s p o n s e s t o t h e B i g 

Sandy 1 RFP. But c o u l d have K e n t u c k y Power I s s u e d an 

RFP s p e c i f i c a l l y f o r r e n e w a b l e r e s o u r c e s ? 

A I guess  we were s p e c i f i c a l l y l o o k i n g 

f o r r e n e w a b l e s , b u t u n d e r s t a n d how t h i s p r o j e c t 

s t a r t e d . They came t o us and  "We have  

o p p o r t u n i t y , and we'd  t o know  you w o u l d be 

I n t e r e s t e d   and we engaged them  

 No o t h e r r e n e w a b l e s came t o us  

r e g a r d t o any p r o j e c t s  o u r s e r v i c e t e r r i t o r y , i n 

K e n t u c k y , t h a t c r e a t e d j o b s  an e c o n o m i c a l l y 

d i s t r e s s e d a r e a , and so as a r e s u l t o f t h a t , we 

c o n t i n u e d t h e d i a l o g u e . 

And my r e f e r e n c e t o t h e o t h e r RFP w i t h 

r e g a r d t o t h e B i g Sandy U n i t 1 c o n v e r s i o n was 
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r e f l e c t i v e t h a t r e n e w a b l e s were e l i g i b l e t o be 
s u b m i t t e d i n t o t h a t RFP. No r e n e w a b l e s were s u b m i t t e d 

 t h a t RFP, w h i c h I b e l i e v e f u r t h e r s u p p o r t s t h e 
f a c t t h a t t h e r e a s o n we  n o t do  was bec a u s e we 
w e r e n ' t -- we were engaged   s p e c i f i c t h i n g  
o u r   o u r s e r v i c e t e r r i t o r y  K e n t u c k y , 
and t h a t ' s t h e d i r e c t i o n we w e n t . 

Q But I guess my q u e s t i o n  K e n t u c k y 

Power c o u l d have i s s u e d an RFP s p e c i f i c a l l y f o r 

r e n e w a b l e r e s o u r c e s i f  w a n t e d t o ? 

A I guess  we were o u t t h e r e h u n t i n g f o r 

r e n e w a b l e s and a l l o f t h a t , I guess we c o u l d have. 

Q Okay. You m e n t i o n e d t h a t t h e p r i c e f o r 

r e n e w a b l e  h i g h e r t h a n n o n r e n e w a b l e g e n e r a t i o n ? 

A I t h i n k I made t h e s t a t e m e n t s t h a t 

r e n e w a b l e s a r e h i s t o r i c a l l y h i g h e r c o s t t h a n 

t r a d i t i o n a l c o a l . 

Q Okay. Would some r e n e w a b l e r e s o u r c e s be 

h i g h e r t h a n o t h e r r e n e w a b l e r e s o u r c e s ? 

A S u r e . I mean, t h e r e a r e d i f f e r e n c e  

c o s t   and s o l a r and b i o m a s s . 

Q Okay.  r e s p e c t t o  b i o m a s s 

c o n t r a c t as compared t o , I g u e s s , any r e n e w a b l e 

r e s o u r c e s t h a t an AEP a f f i l i a t e c u r r e n t l y has --

A A r e you t a l k i n g a b o u t t h e AEP s y s t e m as 
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a w h o l e ? 

Q Yes. How w o u l d t h a t r a n k ? 

A I'm g o i n g t o ask you t o ask t h a t 

q u e s t i o n o f Mr. G o d f r e y . T h a t ' s h i s j o b . 

Q Okay. 

A He does t h a t f o r u s . 

 Okay. 

A So he w o u l d have g r e a t k n o w l e d g e w i t h 

r e g a r d t o t h a t . 

 Okay. G e t t i n g b a c k , I gu e s s , t o y o u r 

c o n c e r n a b o u t d i v e r s i f y i n g y o u r g e n e r a t i o n p o r t f o l i o 

and b e i n g p r e s e n t e d   u n i q u e o p p o r t u n i t y , I 

guess my q u e s t i o n  O u t s i d e o f t h e economic 

b e n e f i t s a s s o c i a t e d  t h e ecoPower f a c i l i t y , does 

t h e c o n t r a c t r a t e  you any pause by I t s e l f ? 

A I d o n ' t t h i n k so, becau s e I knew g o i n g 

 f r o m t h e s t a n d p o i n t t h a t I was g o i n g t o be d e a l i n g 

 a h i g h e r p r i c e d v a l u e  t e r m s o f what I ' d be 

g e t t i n g . B u t , a g a i n , I a l s o l o o k e d a t i t f r o m t h e 

s t a n d p o i n t , you know, t h i s i s p a r t o f t h e G o v e r n o r ' s 

p l a n w i t h r e g a r d t o  o f bi o m a s s 

 T h e r e was e n c o u r a g e m e n t f r o m t h e 

s t a n d p o i n t t h a t l e g i s l a t o r s had e x p r e s s e d , a t l e a s t 

t h r o u g h a f i l e d l e g i s l a t i o n , t h e  o f 

r e n e w a b l e s . T h e r e was t h e r e c o g n i t i o n o f where t h e 
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 P r o t e c t i o n Agency i s g o i n g w i t h r e g a r d 

t o t h e i m p a c t i t has on c o n t i n u a t i o n o f b u r n i n g c o a l 

a t o u r f a c i l i t i e s . The r e c o g n i t i o n t h a t t h i s was an 

i n - s t a t e ,  p r o d u c t t h a t b r o u g h t j o b s 

i n t o t h e s e r v i c e t e r r i t o r y i n w h i c h I o p e r a t e d . 

A l l o f t h a t p l a y e d a  p i c t u r e  

r e g a r d t o t h e c o n t i n u a t i o n o f t h e n e g o t i a t i o n s and t h e 

u l t i m a t e s i g n i n g o f t h e REPA, because I t h i n k f r o m my 

p e r s p e c t i v e o f g e n e r a t i o n p o r t f o l i o ,  g i v e s me 

some p r o t e c t i o n  r e g a r d t o w h a t ' s h a p p e n i n g  

my c o n t i n u e d use o f c o a l . 

I was 100 p e r c e n t c o a l , and  v e r y 

d i f f i c u l t , as you w e l l know, t o c o n t i n u e t o b u r n c o a l 

 r e g a r d t o a l l o f t h e E n v i r o n m e n t a l P r o t e c t i o n 

Agency I s s u e s t h a t a r e b e i n g a d d r e s s e d a t t h e f e d e r a l 

l e v e l and t h e I m p a c t on t h e s t a t e . 

So  o p p o r t u n i t y p r o v i d e d me t o 

d i v e r s i f y , and I t h i n k -- my o p i n i o n o f    

 be a good --   become an even b e t t e r 

d e c i s i o n f o r me l a t e r on down t h e r o a d as t h e EPA 

I m p a c t s a r e  

Q How l o n g have you been e m p l o y e d  

AEP? 

A T h i r t y - n i n e y e a r s . 

Q And d u r i n g t h o s e 39    u n u s u a l 
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f o r an AEP a f f i l i a t e t o e n t e r i n t o a c o n t r a c t f o r 

p u r c h a s e power  o u t s i d e o f an RFP p r o c e s s ? 

A I c a n ' t speak f o r t h e o t h e r a f f i l i a t e s 

o f AEP, b u t Mr. G o d f r e y can speak t o t h e -~ t o t h a t . 

B u t , a g a i n , i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r s i t u a t i o n , d e a l i n g w i t h 

t h i s i s s u e , we d i d n o t do an RFP because we had we 

f e l t t h e i n f o r m a t i o n we had w i t h r e g a r d t o o u r 

r e l a t i o n s h i p t h e r e -- I'm t a l k i n g a b o u t t h e 

n e g o t i a t i o n s and a l l t h a t we d i d n o t even p u r s u e an 

RFP . 

Q D i d you n o t want t o know what o t h e r 

r e n e w a b l e r e s o u r c e s w o u l d be commanding? 

A I t h i n k t h e r e ' s a r e c o g n i t i o n f r o m t h e 

s t a n d p o i n t o f r e c o g n i z i n g r e n e w a b l e s a r e more 

e x p e n s i v e . We're n o t -- we're t r y i n g t o be v e r y 

t r a n s p a r e n t  t h a t . We u n d e r s t a n d t h a t . 

B u t , you know, h e r e ' s an o p p o r t u n i t y f o r 

K e n t u c k y t o l o o k a t and move  t h e a r e a o f 

r e n e w a b l e s . And t h e Commission w i l l make a d e c i s i o n 

w i t h r e g a r d t o a r e we r e a d y t o move i n t o r e n e w a b l e s 

and  

S p e c i f i c a l l y i t ' s -- i t was a h u n d r e d 

p e r c e n t s u p p o r t e d t h r o u g h S enate  46 d u r i n g t h e 

l a s t s e s s i o n . T h a t b i l l , s p e c i f i c t o b i o m a s s , p a s s e d 

w i t h o u t any n e g a t i v e v o t e s  r e g a r d t o t h e s u p p o r t 
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and t h e r e c o g n i t i o n t h a t r e n e w a b l e s i s more e x p e n s i v e . 

So l o o k i n g a t t h e t o t a l p i c t u r e , f e l t 

c o m f o r t a b l e d o i n g  

Q And when you say t h a t , you know, t h e 

u l t i m a t e d e c i s i o n   t h e Commission as t o 

w h e t h e r o r n o t K e n t u c k y Power, you know, s t e p s  

 a r e n a and d i v e r s i f i e s  g e n e r a t i o n p o r t f o l i o --

A A b s o l u t e l y . E v e r y t h i n g we do i s s u b j e c t 

t o t h e i r a p p r o v a l . 

Q Do you t h i n k t h a t what has been p r o v i d e d 

t o t h e Commission t h u s f a r p r o v i d e s a c o m p l e t e and 

f u l l p i c t u r e f o r t h e Commission t o make a f u l l and 

r e a s o n e d d e c i s i o n ? 

A I a b s o l u t e l y do. I t ' s e v e r y t h i n g 

t h a t we have p r o v i d e d r e f l e c t s o u r I n t e r e s t  

p u r s u i n g an I n t r o d u c t i o n o f r e n e w a b l e s  o u r 

p o r t f o l i o and an I n t r o d u c t i o n o f r e n e w a b l e s  t h e 

K e n t u c k y g e n e r a t i o n p o r t f o l i o . I'm t a l k i n g a b o u t t h e 

s t a t e o f K e n t u c k y o r t h e Commonwealth, i f you w i l l . 

Q But t h e r e were no, I gu e s s , economic 

a n a l y s e s o r c o s t - b e n e f i t a n a l y s e s t h a t was c o n d u c t e d 

by K e n t u c k y Power t o d e t e r m i n e w h e t h e r o r n o t t h e 

p r i c e a t w h i c h i t e n t e r e d i n t o f o r  REPA w o u l d be, 

on t h e l o n g t e r m , e c o n o m i c a l ? 

A No, t h e r e was n o t . 
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MR. NGUYEN: Okay. Those a r e a l l t h e 

2 q u e s t i o n s I have . 

3 CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: Mr. K u r t z , have you 

 moved y o u r  ? 

5 MR. KURTZ: Oh, Your Honor, t h a n k y o u . 

6 Your Honor, I moved KIUC E x h i b i t s 1 t h r o u g h 5. 

7 MR. GISH: No o b j e c t i o n . 

8 CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: And 6. 

9 MR. GISH: Mr. C h a i r m a n , I t h i n k t h e 

10 s i x t h e x h i b i t m i g h t be t h e A t t o r n e y G e n e r a l ' s 1. 

11 Mb. HANS: I t was t h e A t t o r n e y 

12  s-

13 CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: Okay. And, 

14  Nguyen, do you have an e x h i b i t ? 

15 MR. NGUYEN: No, s i r ; I d i d n o t have any 

16 e x h i b i t s t o  Your Honor. 

17 CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: Thank y o u . 

18 

19 *  * 

20 

21 EXAMINATION 

22 

23 By C h a i r m a n   

24 

25 Q I j u s t have one o r two q u e s t i o n s . And 
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when you l o o k e d a t t h i s r e n e w a b l e , do you see t h i s i n 

a l o n g - t e r m usage f o r y o u r company? 

A Yes,  I do. 

Q How l o n g ? 

A I t ' s a 2 0 - y e a r c o n t r a c t . I see t h a t as 

p a r t o f my p o r t f o l i o b e y o n d my r e t i r e m e n t f o r K e n t u c k y 

Power Company. 

Q And you say one o f t h e key r e a s o n s f o r 

y o u r h a v i n g  REPA  t h a t  c r e a t e s j o b s ? 

A Yes,    an a r e a t h a t needs 

j obs . 

 

Q And you want t o s u p p o r t j o b s ? 

A A b s o l u t e l y . 

Q As b e s t you can? 

A A b s o l u t e l y . 

Q Okay. 

A Even s u p p o r t i n g t h e G o v e r n o r ' s e n e r g y 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: Q u e s t i o n s . 

VICE-CHAIR GARDNER: Yes, s i r . Thank 

you 
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EXAMINATION 

By V i c e - C h a i r G a r d n e r : 

Q Mr. P a u l e y , i f -- t h e REPA r e q u i r e s 

K e n t u c k y Power t o p u r c h a s e up t o 50 s o m e t h i n g 

m e g a w a t t s o f power once i t goes i n t o e f f e c t ; i s t h a t 

r i g h t ? 

A T h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q I s t h e r e -- as you know, i n t h e M i t c h e l l 

c ase, t h e s e t t l e m e n t i n c l u d e d a p r o v i s i o n t h a t a r o s e 

because o f t h e -- P r e s i d e n t  s t a t e m e n t o r 

r e q u i r e m e n t t o EPA t h a t t h e y had t o i s s u e c a r b o n , w i t h 

r e s p e c t t o e x i s t i n g , by June o f 2014, and t h e r e was an 

a d d i t i o n a l p r o v i s i o n i n t h a t . 

I s t h e r e any r i s k a t a l l t o -- we d o n ' t 

know what f o r m t h a t ' s g o i n g t o t a k e . I s t h e r e any 

r i s k a t a l l t o K e n t u c k y Power i f , s a y , a y e a r f r o m now 

o r two y e a r s f r o m now t h a t t h i s b i o m a s s f a c i l i t y  

n o t p e r m i t t e d t o go f o r w a r d b ecause o f c a r b o n o r any 

o t h e r e n v i r o n m e n t a l r e g u l a t i o n ? I s t h e r e any r i s k t o 

K e n t u c k y Power? 

A I t h i n k t h a t ' s a v e r y good q u e s t i o n , and 

t h e answer t o t h a t  t h e r e  no  a t a l l t o 

K e n t u c k y Power Company n o r t o  c u s t o m e r s . The 
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c o n t r a c t has been a g r e e d upon by t h e -- t h o s e who have 

s i g n e d on. W i t h r e g a r d t o any o f t h o s e i s s u e s t h a t 

you have d e s c r i b e d ,  a r e a t t h e t o t a l 

e xpense o f t h e s e l l e r . And I have p r o t e c t e d my 

c u s t o m e r s and p r o t e c t e d my company f r o m t h a t . 

Q Okay. So, f o r e x a m p l e , even i f t h e y --

even i f ecoPower i s n o t a b l e t o g e t f i n a n c i n g f o r t h e 

p r o j e c t , t h e r e ' s no r i s k t o K e n t u c k y Power? 

A No r i s k a t a l l . 

Q Have t h e y p r o v i d e d a f i n a n c i n g 

commitment t o y o u - a l l ? Do y o u - a l l --

A I t h i n k t h e r e ' s been c o n v e r s a t i o n a b o u t 

t h a t , b u t I t h i n k Jay G o d f r e y w o u l d be a b l e t o g e t 

s p e c i f i c  you  r e g a r d t o t h e i r f i n a n c i n g . 

 Okay. 

A He was o u r l e a d n e g o t i a t o r on  

 

Q Okay. Have y o u - a l l f i l e d w i t h t h e 

Commission y e t y o u r a p p l i c a t i o n  r e s p e c t t o  

Sandy 1? 

A No,  We have -- we a r e a w a i t i n g 

y o u r d e c i s i o n  r e g a r d t o t h e case  t h e 

M i t c h e l l a s s e t t r a n s f e r and t h e s t i p u l a t e d a g r e e m e n t , 

and  you so choose t o a p p r o v e t h a t , t h e n we w o u l d be 

p u r s u i n g t h e f i l i n g o f t h a t U n i t 1 c o n v e r s i o n t o gas. 
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Q Okay. I f t h e Commission a p p r o v e s t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r a p p l i c a t i o n  f r o n t o f us t o d a y , t h e 

ecoPower,  t h a t have any I m p a c t a t a l l on w h e t h e r 

you  y o u r CPCN f o r  Sandy 1? 

A W e l l , w i t h i n t h e -- w i t h i n t h e REPA 

agre e m e n t t h a t t h e m o v i n g f o r w a r d on t h e ecoPower  

c o n t i n g e n t upon us r e c e i v i n g a p p r o v a l t o g e t t h e 

M i t c h e l l a s s e t s . 

Q I u n d e r s t a n d t h a t . 

A Okay. 

Q But what I mean i s , a r e you -- i s y o u r 

f i l i n g o f B i g Sandy 1, t h e CPCN w i t h u s , i s t h a t 

c o n t i n g e n t -- does t h a t have i s t h a t I m p a c t e d a t 

a l l by a d e c i s i o n a p p r o v i n g ecoPower, o r a r e you s t i l l 

g o i n g t o go ahead   Sandy 1 even  we a p p r o v e 

ecoPower? 

A See  I'm -- i f I'm  y o u r 

q u e s t i o n , y o u ' r e w a n t i n g t o know t h a t  we g e t 

a p p r o v a l w i t h eco and we do n o t g e t t h e a p p r o v a l on 

t h e c o n v e r s i o n o f  1, w o u l d we p u r s u e t h e 

Q No. No. 

Okay. Then I a p o l o g i z e . 

 

  

So t h e r e ' s  b a s i c a l l y t h e r e ' s 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 
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t h r e e m o v i n g p a r t s r i g h t now. T h e r e ' s M i t c h e l l , 

t h e r e ' s ecoPower, and t h e r e ' s  Sandy 1 c o n v e r s i o n . 

A R i g h t . 

Q A s s u m i n g we a p p r o v e M i t c h e l l , a s s u m i n g 

we a p p r o v e ecoPower, a r e you s t i l l g o i n g ahead  

 Sandy 1 CPCN?  you be m a k i n g t h a t f i l i n g  

us  we a p p r o v e t h e M i t c h e l l   we a p p r o v e 

ecoPower? 

A   

Q Okay. 

A Yes,  I'm s o r r y --

Q T h a t ' s okay. 

A -- f o r any  

Q Now, you a s k e d -- o r you made some 

comments a b o u t t h e s i g n i f i c a n c e o f no r e n e w a b l e s 

a p p l y i n g o r p a r t i c i p a t i n g  t h e RFP  r e s p e c t t o 

 Sandy 1. Do you t h i n k t h a t b e c a u s e t h e Commission 

had p r e v i o u s l y r e j e c t e d an a p p l i c a t i o n f o r a h u n d r e d 

m e g a w a t t s o f  t h a t t h a t m i g h t have had a c h i l l i n g 

e f f e c t on a r e n e w a b l e a p p l i c a t i o n t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n 

t h e RFP? 

A W e l l , I'm -- as much as I a p p r e c i a t e 

y o u r q u e s t i o n , I'm n o t I n s i d e t h e b r a i n s o f t h o s e who 

w o u l d have been l o o k i n g a t t h a t . I have t o t h i n k t h a t 

t h a t p r o b a b l y w o u l d have I m p a c t e d  on 
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t h e --

Q Okay. 

A T h a t ' s a p r e s u m p t i o n on my p a r t . 

Q Su r e . Was i t known, a t t h e t i m e o f t h e 

s e n d i n g o u t t h e RFP, t h a t an o p t i o n was t h a t K e n t u c k y 

Power was g o i n g t o c o n s i d e r r e t r o f i t t i n g B i g Sandy 1 

t o c o m b i n e d c y c l e ? 

I n o t h e r w o r d s ,  t h e RFP was  

known t h a t y o u - a l l were g o i n g t o be a c o m p e t i t o r  

t h a t RFP? 

A I need t o t h i n k a b o u t t h a t a m i n u t e t o 

make s u r e I u n d e r s t a n d t h e q u e s t i o n . A r e you a s k i n g 

 t h e RFP was s u b m i t t e d  p e o p l e t h i n k i n g we were 

g o i n g t o r e t r o f i t  Sandy 1? 

Q T h a t you m i g h t r e t r o f i t . T h a t t h e r e was 

a p r i c e o u t t h e r e t h a t you were g o i n g t o be 

r e t r o f i t -- p o t e n t i a l l y r e t r o f i t t i n g  Sandy 1? I f 

you d o n ' t remember, c a n ' t -- t h a t ' s f i n e . 

A Yeah, I need t o t h i n k t h r o u g h t h a t f o r a 

m i n u t e , and I'm n o t s u r e I can answer t h a t r i g h t now. 

VICE-CHAIR GARDNER: Okay. T h a t ' s a l l I 

have. Thank y o u . 

THE WITNESS: You ' r e welcome. 
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EXAMINATION 

By C o m m i s s i o n e r B r e a t h i t t : 

Q Yes, I have one and --

A   

Q -- i f I -- i t ' s a f o l l o w - u p t o a 

q u e s t i o n Mr. K u r t z a s k e d . 

A Okay. 

COMMISSIONER BREATHITT: And 1 c a n ' t 

remember   was  c o n f i d e n t i a l s e s s i o n o r n o t , so 

 you g u i d e me on  

MR.  A b s o l u t e l y , ma'am. 

THE WITNESS:  s u r e t h e y ' l l g u i d e me. 

Q You s t a t e d u n d e r t h e  c r o s s t h a t 

ecoPower  s l a t e d t o b e g i n o p e r a t i o n  e a r l y 2017  

t h e y g e t a p o s i t i v e a p p r o v a l o r d e r . 

A I t  t h e i r I n t e n t t o be o n l i n e  2017; 

  

 t e s t i m o n y o f G r e g o r y G. 

P a u l e y h e a r d f r o m 11:39 a.m. t o 11:43 a.m.) 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONC: We're b a c k on t h e 

 

Q Mr. P a u l e y , you a l s o t a l k e d a b o u t h a v i n g 

a t h r e e p e r c e n t c u s h i o n  PJM? 
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A   

Q And t h a t i s a r e s e r v e m a r g i n o f t h r e e 

p e r c e n t , o r how w o u l d you d e s c r i b e t h a t --

A We --

Q -- t h r e e p e r c e n t c u s h i o n  PJM? 

A I n t e r m s o f o u r c a p a c i t y , p r o v i d i n g we 

g e t e v e r y t h i n g e x c l u d i n g eco, what o u r demand  t h e 

r e s e r v e t h a t we a r e r e q u i r e d t o have u n d e r PJM and t h e 

l i t t l e  o f c a p a c i t y t h a t we have  e x c e s s o f t h a t 

 t h r e e p e r c e n t .  a d d i t i o n a l 58.5,  a p p r o v e d 

by t h e Commission, w o u l d t a k e us t o a p p r o x i m a t e l y  

p e r c e n t . So t h a t ' s a v e r y s m a l l c u s h i o n  r e g a r d 

t o  E a s t e r n K e n t u c k y s t a r t s g r o w i n g and a l l o f t h a t , 

I ' v e g o t s o m e t h i n g t h e r e t o h e l p me a d d r e s s t h a t as I 

c o n t i n u e t o l o o k f o r more. 

Q But t h r e e p e r c e n t  what PJM r e q u i r e s ? 

A No, I t h i n k on t h e r e s e r v e m a r g i n , I 

t h i n k PJM r e c u r s -- r e q u i r e s -- e x c u s e me, r e q u i r e s 

a b o u t 15 p e r c e n t r e s e r v e m a r g i n . 

Q But i s a r e you d e s c r i b i n g y o u r t h r e e 

p e r c e n t c u s h i o n as a r e s e r v e m a r g i n o r s o m e t h i n g e l s e ? 

A Above. Above and b e y o n d . 

Q I t ' s t h r e e p e r c e n t above? 

A   

Q Okay. 
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A Yes, ma'am. T h a t ' s t h e c u s h i o n I'm 

  

Q Okay. Okay. I w a s n ' t s u r e what t h e 

s t a r t i n g p o i n t was, seven p e r c e n t , t e n p e r c e n t . B u t 

i t ' s a b o u t 15 p e r c e n t ? 

A I t -- y e s , ma'am. 

COMMISSIONER BREATHITT: Okay. T h a t ' s 

a l l I have. 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: R e d i r e c t . 

MR. GISH: Mr. C h a i r m a n , I have a few 

r e d i r e c t q u e s t i o n s . 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

By Mr. C i s h : 

Q Mr. P a u l e y , f o l l o w i n g up on C o m m i s s i o n e r 

B r e a t h i t t ' s q u e s t i o n s a b o u t demand and t h e g e n e r a t i o n 

o f c a p a c i t y o f g e n e r a t i o n p o r t f o l i o o f K e n t u c k y 

Power, t h e M i t c h e l l t r a n s f e r t h a t we have d i s c u s s e d 

h e r e  f o r 780 m e g a w a t t s ;  t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A   

Q And t h a t r e p l a c e -- w o u l d r e p l a c e t h e 
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1 B i g Sandy U n i t 2 f a c i l i t y , w h i c h i s 800 m e g a w a t t s ; i s 

2 t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

3         

   So  a  d e c r e a s e — 

5 A T h a t  c o r r e c t . 

6 Q --  t h a t ? And t h e  Sandy 1 

7 c o n v e r s i o n t h a t we a r e  -- t h a t t h e Company 

8  f i l i n g a c e r t i f i c a t e -- f o r a c e r t i f i c a t e 

9 o f p u b l i c c o n v e n i e n c e and n e c e s s i t y --

10 A  

11 Q --  268 m e g a w a t t s ? 

12 A T h a t  c o r r e c t . 

13 Q T h a t w o u l d r e p l a c e t h e 278 m e g a w a t t s 

14 t h a t a r e c u r r e n t l y a t  Sandy 1 as a c o a l f a c i l i t y ? 

15 A T h a t   

16 Q So t h e r e ' s a 30-megawatt d e c r e a s e  

17  c a p a c i t y f o r t h o s e two I n s t a n c e s ? 

18 A T h a t  my math. 

19 Q And Ms. Hans a s k e d some q u e s t i o n s a b o u t 

20 t h e p r o j e c t b e i n g s h o v e l r e a d y . Do you remember 

21 t h o s e ? 

22 A Yes . 

23 Q Do you -- and q u e s t i o n s a b o u t t h e PJM 

24 I m p a c t s t u d y ;  t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

25 A Yes . 
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Q You s t i l l b e l i e v e t h a t t h e f a c i l i t y  

be r e a d y t o go o n l i n e  2017;  t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A 1 have no r e a s o n t o d o u b t t h a t t h a t 

f a c i l i t y  be r e a d y -- up and r u n n i n g by 2017. 

Q And you d i s c u s s e d   r e s p o n s e 

t o Mr. Nguyen's q u e s t i o n s r e g a r d i n g t h e b e n e f i t s o f 

f u e l d i v e r s i t y , some EPA r e g u l a t i o n s ? 

A Yes . 

Q And t h a t -- t h o s e EPA r e g u l a t i o n s a r e 

p a r t o f w h a t ' s d r i v i n g t h e r e q u i r e m e n t t o r e t i r e  

Sandy 2 and  Sandy 1 as a c o a l f a c i l i t y ;  t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A T h a t  c o r r e c t . 

Q And  what l e d t h e Company t o  an 

a p p l i c a t i o n f o r t h e t r a n s f e r o f t h e 780-megawatt 

M i t c h e l l   t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A T h a t  c o r r e c t . 

Q And  780-megawatt M i t c h e l l   

e n v i r o n m e n t a l l y c o n t r o l l e d ;  t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A Yes . 

Q And we have no -- t h e Company has no 

r e a s o n t o b e l i e v e t h a t f u t u r e  

r e g u l a t i o n s  a f f e c t t h e a b i l i t y o f t h e M i t c h e l l 

s t a t i o n t o r u n ? 

A T h a t  c o r r e c t . 
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Q And b e y o n d t h a t , as p a r t o f t h e 

s t i p u l a t i o n s e t t l e m e n t a g r e e m e n t t h a t ' s b e f o r e t h e 

Commiss i o n , you have b u i l t  c e r t a i n p r o v i s i o n s t o 

p r o t e c t t h e Company  t h e e v e n t t h a t c e r t a i n 

r e g u l a t i o n s do r e q u i r e --

A Yes . 

Q -- t h a t , t h e c u r t a i l m e n t o f M i t c h e l l ? 

A Yes . 

Q And t h o s e p r o v i s i o n s  t h e s e t t l e m e n t 

a g r e e m e n t p r o t e c t t h e c u s t o m e r s ? 

A   

Q And t h a t ' s p a r a g r a p h 21 o f t h e 

s e t t l e m e n t a g r e e m e n t ;  t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A 1 b e l i e v e t h a t  s u b j e c t t o c h e c k . 

MR.  And 1 have one q u e s t i o n f o r 

c o n f i d e n t i a l t r e a t m e n t , Mr. C h a i r m a n . 

 t e s t i m o n y o f C r e g o r y C. 

P a u l e y h e a r d f r o m 11:47 a.m. t o 11:48 a.m.) 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONC: No f u r t h e r 

 ? 

MR.  No,  Mr. C h a i r m a n . 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONC: Okay. Mr. P a u l e y , 

you a r e e x c u s e d . 

THE WITNESS: Thank y o u ,  

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONC: You may be r e c a l l e d 
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d u r i n g t h i s h e a r i n g , t h o u g h . 

THE WITNESS: A v a i l a b l e . 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: I t ' s t e n  

12:00, and you have w i t n e s s --   Mr. G o d f r e y 

g o i n g t o be --

MR.  The n e x t w i t n e s s up  be 

Mr. Wohnhas, Mr. C h a i r m a n . 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONC: Wohnhas. Okay. We 

c a n ' t do   s h o r t o r d e r , so --

MR. CISH: 1 d o n ' t b e l i e v e t h a t ' s t r u e . 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONC: Would you  t o 

b r e a k f o r l u n c h ? 

MR. OVERSTREET:  --

MR.   up t o t h e 

Commission's — 

MR. OVERSTREET:  up t o t h e 

 

MS. HANS: Up t o t h e Commi s s i o n . 

MR. NCUYEN:  up t o  Your Honor. 

COMMISSIONER BREATHITT: What do you 

want t o do? 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONC: Mr. Wohnhas  two 

o r t h r e e h o u r s , 1 t h i n k , so --

MR.  W e l l , we have a b o u t two 

q u e s t i o n s f o r Mr. Wohnhas, so 1 d o n ' t know. 
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CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: L e t ' s b r e a k and be 

back a t 1:00 o ' c l o c k . 

MR.  Thank y o u . 

(Recess f r o m 11:49 a.m. t o 1:03 p.m.) 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONC: We're back on t h e 

 

Your  

MR.  Yes. Thank y o u , 

Mr. C h a i r m a n . K e n t u c k y Power c a l l s  n e x t w i t n e s s , 

Mr.  Wohnhas. 

RANIE WOHNHAS, c a l l e d by K e n t u c k y Power 

Company, h a v i n g been f i r s t d u l y s w o r n , t e s t i f i e d as 

 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

By Mr.  

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONC: Have a s e a t . Speak 

up l o u d and c l e a r . Your name? 

THE WITNESS: R a n i e Wohnhas. 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONG: And where do you 
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THE WITNESS: K e n t u c k y Power Company, 

F r a n k f o r t , K e n t u c k y . 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONC: How l o n g have you 

been t h e r e ? 

THE WITNESS:  been t h e r e s i n c e 

2004, w i t h t h e company f o r a b o u t 35 y e a r s . 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONC: Why a r e you h e r e ? 

THE WITNESS:  h e r e t o s u p p o r t t h e 

c o s t o f s e r v i c e i m p a c t f o r t h i s REPA t h a t has been 

f i i e d as w e i i as t h e c o s t r e c o v e r y mechanism. 

CHAIRMAN ARMSTRONC: Your w i t n e s s . 

MR.  Thank y o u , Mr. C h a i r m a n . 

Q Mr. Wohnhas, d i d you have d i r e c t and 

s u p p l e m e n t a l t e s t i m o n y and e x h i b i t s f i l e d i n t h i s 

case? 

A 1 d i d . 

Q And d i d you have r e s p o n s e s t o d a t a 

r e q u e s t s f i i e d i n t h i s case? 

A Yes . 

Q And do you have any u p d a t e s t o y o u r 

t e s t i m o n y i n t h i s case? 

A  

 Do you have any t e s t u p d a t e s t o t h e 

r e s p o n s e s t o d a t a r e q u e s t s i n t h i s case? 
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A Yes, I do. 

The f i r s t one w o u l d be P u b l i c S e r v i c e 

Commission 1-10. I t i n c o r r e c t l y s t a t e s t h a t t h e r e 

were 75 h o u r s t h a t were above t h e REPA p r i c e , and i t 

s h o u l d be 28. 

And t h e n  2-9, w h i c h a s k e d f o r t h e 

s u p p o r t f o r t h o s e h o u r s , we w i l l p r o v i d e an u p d a t e d 

d i s k t o a l l p a r t i e s s h o w i n g t h e 28 h o u r s . T h e r e was 

an i n c o r r e c t v a l u e as w e l l i n t h a t d i s k t h a t s u p p o r t e d 

28 h o u r s , and w e ' l l p r o v i d e t h a t a f t e r t h e h e a r i n g . 

Q And, Mr. Wohnhas, s u b j e c t t o t h e u p d a t e s 

you j u s t made, i f 1 were t o ask you t h e same q u e s t i o n s 

t h a t a r e i n -- excuse me -- t h a t a r e i n y o u r 

t e s t i m o n y , w o u l d you g i v e t h e same r e s p o n s e s ? 

A Yes . 

MR.  Mr. C h a i r m a n , Mr. Wohnhas i s 

a v a i l a b l e f o r c r o s s - e x a m i n a t i o n . 

MR. KURTZ: Thank y o u , Mr. C h a i r m a n . 
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By Mr. K u r t z : 

Q Cood a f t e r n o o n , Mr. Wohnhas. 

A Cood a f t e r n o o n . 

Q As I r e c a l l t h a t d a t a r e s p o n s e t h a t you 

u p d a t e d , t h e S t a f f a s k e d you how many h o u r s w o u l d t h e 

e n e r g y and c a p a c i t y c o s t s o f t h e REPA be above t h e 

m a r k e t p r i c e i n t h e PJM m a r k e t . Was t h a t i t ? 

A T h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

 Okay. So t h e REPA i s l e s s e x p e n s i v e 

t h a n PJM 28 h o u r s o u t o f 8,760? 

A T h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q So t h e REPA i s more e x p e n s i v e t h a n t h e 

m a r k e t p u r c h a s e 99.7 p e r c e n t o f t h e t i m e ? 

A T h a t ' s a p p r o x i m a t e l y c o r r e c t , y e s . 

Q W i l l you t u r n t o E x h i b i t RKW-1 t o y o u r 

d i r e c t t e s t i m o n y ? 

A   

Q Okay. So l i n e 1, t h a t ' s t h e -- t h a t ' s 

t h e f i r s t y e a r p u r c h a s e p r i c e u n d e r t h e REPA, 

 

A T h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q And t h i s i s a 2 0 - y e a r c o n t r a c t ? 
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A T h a t ' s a l s o c o r r e c t . 

Q So a t a minimum -- and t h e -- so a t a 

minimum -- and t h e c o n t r a c t i n c l u d e s an e s c a l a t i o n 

f a c t o r t h a t -- p e r y e a r t h a t ' s  c o r r e c t ? 

A T h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q Okay. So a t a minimum, t h i s i s a 

$1 b i l l i o n p u r c h a s e ? 

A I n r o u g h — i n  r o u g h numbers, y e s . 

Q Okay. Now, l i n e 5, t h e i n c r e m e n t a l 

r e v e n u e r e q u i r e m e n t o f $35,151,000, i s t h a t t h e amount 

o f r a t e i n c r e a s e consumers w o u l d e x p e r i e n c e u n d e r t h e 

REPA i n t h e f i r s t y e a r ? 

A W e l l , i t ' s j u s t e x p l a i n a l i t t l e b i t . 

The REPA, and as we have s u b m i t t e d i t i n t h e -- my 

s u p p l e m e n t a l t e s t i m o n y and t h e r e v i s e d f i l i n g , w o u l d 

be what c o v e r -- what g e t s r e c o v e r e d t h r o u g h t h e REPA 

w o u l d be l i n e 1, and t h e n l i n e s 3 and 4, t h e a v o i d e d 

c o s t s , w o u l d happen t h r o u g h base r a t e s . B ut t h e t o t a l 

c o s t o f s e r v i c e i m p a c t t o t h e c u s t o m e r w o u l d be l i n e 

5 . 

Q Okay. So you r e c o v e r $50 m i l l i o n p e r 

y e a r t h r o u g h some s o r t o f s u r c h a r g e , b u t t h e r e ' l l be 

an o f f s e t i n t h e base r a t e s by a b o u t 15 m i l l i o n , so 

t h e n e t i m p a c t t o consumers i s 35 m i l l i o n ? 

A T h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 
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Q And t h a t ' s t h e f i r s t y e a r ? 

A Year one. 

Q Okay. Have you -- and t h e n t h e REPA 

e s c a l a t e s a t a c e r t a i n amount e v e r y y e a r , t h e p r i c e 

g e t s h i g h e r ? 

A Yes . 

 Okay. And have you p r e s e n t e d , i n y o u r 

t e s t i m o n y o r a n y w h e r e , what t h e 2 0 - y e a r r e v e n u e i m p a c t 

t o consumers w o u l d be? 

A  one o f my d a t a r e q u e s t s t h a t was 

a s k e d , t h e -- i t was a s k e d t o what t h e p e r c e n t a g e 

i n c r e a s e w o u l d be o v e r t h e f u l l t e r m o f t h e -- and i t 

w o u l d be an a d d i t i o n a l s i x p e r c e n t , f o r a t o t a l o f 

r o u g h l y 13 p e r c e n t o v e r t h e l i f e o f t h e 2 0 - y e a r 

 

Q Okay. 1 remember t h a t d a t a r e s p o n s e . 

You had i t s o r t o f by y e a r , s m a l l i n c r e m e n t g o i n g up? 

A T h a t ' s c o r r e c t , s i r . 

Q Okay. So o v e r t h e l i f e o f t h e a g r e e m e n t 

i t ' s a 13 p e r c e n t i n c r e a s e , n e t n e t i n c r e a s e ? 

A Based on t h e -- u s i n g t h e 2012 r e v e n u e s 

and as i f n o t h i n g w o u l d change, y e s .  t h a t --

b e g i n n i n g i n 2017. 

MR. KURTZ: Okay. Thank y o u , 

Mr. C h a i r m a n . No more q u e s t i o n s , Mr. Wohnhas. 

McLENDON-KOGUT REPORTING SERVICE, LLC (502) 585-5634 



76 

1 MS. HANS: Yes, Your Honor. 

2 

3 *  * 

4 

5 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

6 

7 By Ms. Hans: 

8 

9 Q Mr. Wohnhas, good a f t e r n o o n . 

10 A Good a f t e r n o o n . 

11 Q F o l l o w i n g t h i s l i n e o f q u e s t i o n i n g , t h e 

12 q u e s t i o n by Mr. K u r t z , I j u s t had a few f o l l o w - u p 

13 m a t t e r s . And you were p r e s e n t , were you n o t , when 

14 Mr. P a u l e y t e s t i f i e d ? 

15 A Yes, 1 was. 

16 Q Okay. But  r e f e r e n c e what  --

17 what  s p e a k i n g a b o u t , so c o r r e c t me i f  wrong o r 

18 ask me t o e x p l a i n i n f u r t h e r d e t a i l . 

19 The 7.02 p e r c e n t i n c r e a s e t h a t you 

20 i d e n t i f i e d and d i s c u s s e d w i t h Mr. K u r t z i n RKW 

21 E x h i b i t 1, t h i s i s an a l l - i n r e v e n u e i n c r e a s e ?  

22 o t h e r w o r d s , i t ' s t h e o v e r a l l i n c l u d i n g a l l c l a s s e s ? 

23 A Yes. 

24  T h a t ' s --  j u s t -- 1 j u s t want t o 

25 make s u r e . 
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1 A Sure . 

2 Q And i f you want t o d e s c r i b e i t 

3  f e e l f r e e t o do so, b u t --

4 A No, t h a t ' s -- t h a t ' s o v e r a l l . 

5 Q Okay. And t h e n i n t e r m s o f y o u r 

6 s u p p l e m e n t a l t e s t i m o n y i n t h i s p r o c e e d i n g , you f i l e d 

7 t e s t i m o n y t o s u p p o r t t h e amended a p p l i c a t i o n , c o r r e c t ? 

8 A Yes . 

9 Q And i n t h a t t e s t i m o n y you e x p l a i n e d t h e 

10 c o s t r e c o v e r y -- r e c o v e r y mechanism c a l l e d t h e bi o m a s s 

11 e n e r g y  w h i c h you s u m m a r i z e d a few m i n u t e s  

12 c o r r e c t ? 

13 A   

14  Okay. And t h a t mechanism was a l s o 

15 d e t a i l e d i n E x h i b i t 5 t o y o u r a p p l i c a t i o n , o r t o t h e 

16 amended a p p l i c a t i o n , s u b j e c t t o -- t o --

17 A I have i t . I j u s t want t o --

18 Q -- c o r r e c t i o n . U n d e r s t o o d . 

19 A W e l l , I guess t o my t e s t i m o n y was 

20 E x h i b i t  

21 Q  

22 A And i t ' s E x h i b i t 5 o f t h e  

23 yes . 

24 Q Thank y o u , s i r . Now, s u b j e c t t o t h e 

25 amended a p p l i c a t i o n , t h e Company c a u s e d t o be i s s u e d a 
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s e r i e s o f t h e p u b l i s h e d n o t i c e s o f t h e bi o m a s s e n e r g y 

r i d e r t a r i f f ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A T h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q Okay. And i n t h o s e n o t i c e s , and 

Mr. P a u l e y t e s t i f i e d e a r l i e r , b u t c o n f i r m , i f you 

w i l l , t h a t t h e Company e s t i m a t e d t h a t t h e p e r c e n t a g e 

i n c r e a s e f o r a r e s i d e n t i a l r a t e p a y e r a v e r a g i n g 

1,374 k i l o w a t t h o u r s p e r month w o u l d be 8.69 p e r c e n t ; 

i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A Yes. T h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q D i d you q u a n t i f y t h i s p e r c e n t a g e 

i n c r e a s e e s t i m a t e f o r K e n t u c k y Power Company p r i o r t o 

t h e p u b l i c a t i o n ? 

A No. What 

Q Okay. 

A What t h i s i s , i n t r y i n g t o maybe 

r e c o n c i l e my E x h i b i t RKW-1 t o t h i s h e r e , f o r t h e 

a d v e r t i s e m e n t , w h i c h y o u ' r e r e f e r r i n g t o --

Q Uh-huh. 

A -- t h i s i s f o r t h e biom a s s e n e r g y r i d e r , 

and p e r t h e r e g u l a t i o n , we're t o s u b m i t what t h e r a t e 

i n c r e a s e w o u l d be f o r s t r i c t l y i t s r u n n i n g t h r o u g h t h e 

bi o m a s s e n e r g y r i d e r . I f you were t o go b a c k t o my 

E x h i b i t RKW-1, t h a t i s b a s i c a l l y l i n e 1. So --

and t h e n what we t h e n do t h a t t h e a d v e r t i s e m e n t does 
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n o t do i s r e f l e c t t h e a v o i d e d c o s t s t h a t w o u l d happen. 

So i n o t h e r w o r d s , r o u g h l y j u s t t h e 

e s t i m a t e d p u r c h a s e c o s t s i s a l i t t l e o v e r t e n p e r c e n t , 

a b o u t t e n and a q u a r t e r , b u t t h e n when you o f f s e t 

t h o s e w i t h t h e a v o i d e d f u e l , a v o i d e d c a p a c i t y , g e t s 

you b a c k down t o t h e seven p e r c e n t . 

So t h e 8.69 p e r c e n t f o r t h e r e s i d e n t i a l 

c u s t o m e r s w o u l d be what t h e y w o u l d see, t h e a v e r a g e 

c u s t o m e r , t h r o u g h t h e i r -- t h r o u g h t h e BER, t h e 

bioma s s e n e r g y r i d e r , b u t t h e n t h e y w o u l d a l s o see 

a v o i d -- t h r o u g h t h e i r base r a t e s , t h e a v o i d e d c o s t s . 

Q As a n t i c i p a t e d by t h e Company? 

A As a n t i c i p a t e d b a s e d on t h e e s t i m a t e s , 

 . 

Q Okay. And t h a n k you f o r t h a t 

 

Was t h i s -- p r i o r t o t h e n o t i c e b e i n g 

s u p p l i e d , was t h e  and t h e d i v i s i o n by 

c l a s s p r o v i d e d t o t h e i n t e r v e n i n g p a r t i e s ? I d o n ' t 

r e c a l l , b u t I w a n t e d t o make s u r e . 

A Not t h a t I'm aware o f . 

MS. HANS: Can I r e q u e s t t h a t as a 

p o s t - h e a r i n g d a t a r e q u e s t , t o have t h a t  

c a l c u l a t e d , i n c l u d i n g , you know, s a l e s i n t a c t , i n 

t e r m s o f how t h a t -- how t h a t was a c t u a l l y -- t h a t 
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n o t i c e was a c t u a l l y a r r i v e d a t ? 

MR. GISH: C e r t a i n l y . Do you j u s t want 

t h e s p r e a d s h e e t v e r s i o n o f w h a t ' s 

MS. HANS: Yes. And we're j u s t l o o k i n g 

f o r t h e s p r e a d s h e e t v e r s i o n . 

MR. CISH: S p r e a d s h e e t v e r s i o n . 

MS. HANS: Yes, s i r . Yes, s i r . 

MR. CISH: S p r e a d s h e e t -- j u s t t o be 

c l e a r , s p r e a d s h e e t v e r s i o n o f t h e t a b l e s t h a t were 

 i n t h e newspaper  

MS. HANS: Yes. And what was i n c l u d e d 

t o a r r i v e a t t h o s e numbers, t h e b a c k u p w o r k s h e e t s . 

MR.  C e r t a i n l y . 

Q And j u s t f o r t h e r e c o r d -- and 1 t h i n k 

you t e s t i f i e d t o t h i s e a r l i e r , b u t 1 j u s t w a n t e d t o 

c o n f i r m . These numbers were b a s e d on 2012 d a t a , 

c o r r e c t ? 

A The -- what was i n my E x h i b i t RKW-1 was 

2012, b u t f o r t h e --

 The n o t i c e ? 

A -- f o r t h e n o t i c e was 12 months ended 

March i n o r d e r --

 Okay. 

A -- i n o r d e r t o meet t h e r e q u i r e m e n t s o f 

r e g u l a t i o n t o have f i n a n c i a l d a t a o n l y , so more up t o 
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d a t e . So t h a t ' s -- i t ' s s l i g h t l y d i f f e r e n t . 

Q Okay. Has K e n t u c k y Power Company r u n 

any f o r e c a s t s t o d e t e r m i n e what t h e a c t u a l i m p a c t 

w o u l d be i n 2017, when t h i s i s a n t i c i p a t e d t o go i n t o 

 

A No, we have n o t . We j u s t r e a l l y d o n ' t 

have a good i d e a o f what t h e s a l e s r e v e n u e w o u l d be, 

so we d i d  

MS. HANS: T h a t ' s a l l I  Your 

Honor. Thank y o u . 

THE COURT: Mr. Nguyen. 

MR. NGUYEN: Yes, Your Honor. A few 

 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

By Mr. Nguyen: 

Q Cood a f t e r n o o n , Mr. Wohnhas. 

A Cood a f t e r n o o n . 

Q L e t ' s s t i c k w i t h y o u r E x h i b i t RKW-1. 

A   

 Okay.  c a l c u l a t i n g t h e a v o i d e d f u e l 
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c o s t s , c o u l d you k i n d o f g e n e r a l l y e x p l a i n how you 

c a i c u i a t e d t h a t a v o i d e d f u e l c o s t s ? 

A Yes. We j u s t used t h e a n t i c i p a t e d 

m egawatt h o u r s t h a t was g i v e n t o us as what t h e y 

t h o u g h t t h e y w o u l d r u n f o r one y e a r i n 2017, and t h e n 

we used what i s c u r r e n t l y o u r base f u e l r a t e and j u s t 

m u l t i p l i e d i t t h a t s i m p l y . We d i d n o t go i n and do 

an -- be c a u s e we had j u s t u p d a t e d o u r base t o t h e --

i t ' s s t i l l 28.4 m i l l s p e r k i l o w a t t h o u r -- megawatt 

h o u r , t h a t we j u s t f e l t t h e r e w i l l be ups and downs, 

b u t t h a t was a f a i r r a t e t o use f o r t h i s c a l c u l a t i o n . 

Q Okay. When you say t h e ups and downs, 

t h e f u e l c o s t s a r e i n c l u d e d i n t h e FAC, r i g h t ? 

A Yes. I mean, you c o u l d have months 

where y o u r f u e l c o s t was h i g h e r o r l o w e r , b u t we j u s t 

u s e d t h e base f o r t h i s c a l c u l a t i o n . 

Q Okay. Were t h e r e any  as 

t o s o r t o f a v e r a g i n g o u t t h o s e c o s t s t h a t a r e 

r e f l e c t e d i n t h e FAC? 

A 1 mean, y e s , b u t we j u s t chose t o s t a y 

w i t h t h e -- j u s t s i m p i e t o s t a y w i t h t h e 28.4. 

 Okay. Okay. F a i r enough. W i t h r e s p e c t 

t o t h e a v o i d e d c a p a c i t y c o s t s , can you e x p l a i n what 

t h e a v o i d e d c a p a c i t y c o s t s means? 

A Sur e . Back t o when Mr. P a u l e y was 
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r e s p o n d i n g t o C o m m i s s i o n e r B r e a t h i t t a b o u t t h i s t h r e e 

p e r c e n t e x t r a above and b e y o n d o u r r e s e r v e 

r e q u i r e m e n t s w i t h o u r c a p a c i t y , what t h e c a p a c i t y 

w o u l d mean i s , i f we were t o have ecoPower i n 2017 as 

p a r t o f o u r t o t a l l o a d , t h a t w o u l d be e x c e s s . 

We b i d i n each y e a r o u r l o a d i n t o PJM, 

b u t we d o n ' t b i d i n -- we j u s t b i d i n what we need t o 

c o v e r o u r c a p a c i t y p l u s t h e r e s e r v e m a r g i n . So t h e 

e x t r a c a p a c i t y , and t h i s , you know, w o u l d be t h r e e 

p e r c e n t p r i o r t o eco and s i x p e r c e n t a f t e r , we w o u l d 

t h e n t a k e t o t h e we a r e p a r t o f  We w o u l d t a k e 

i t t o t h e RPM a u c t i o n and s e l l o r b i d t h a t i n t o be 

s o l d i n t o t h e c a p a c i t y a u c t i o n , so t h e n -- and what we 

used t o p r i c e i t o u t j u s t f o r now was t h e 2015-'16 

c l e a r i n g p r i c e i n t h e PJM FRR m a r k e t . 

 Okay. And t h e n you a r r i v e d a t t h e 

f i g u r e o f $2.7 m i l l i o n , $2.73 m i l l i o n f o r a v o i d e d 

c a p a c i t y c o s t s ? 

A Yes. For y e a r one. 

Q Okay. As a r e s u l t o f t h e ecoPower REPA? 

A Yes. Yeah, t h a t ' s j u s t -- t h a t i s 

j u s t -- r i g h t , p r i c i n g o u t j u s t t h e eco as i f t h a t 58 

and a h a l f m e g a w a t t s w o u l d be s o l d i n t h e c a p a c i t y 

 

Q Okay. So does t h a t r e f l e c t K e n t u c k y 

McLENDON-KOGUT REPORTING SERVICE, LLC (502) 585-5634 



1 Power b e i n g c a p a c i t y s h o r t ? 

2 A No. I mean, l i k e -- as I s a i d , i f you 

3 l o o k a t -- i f we were t o assume f o r t h e moment, f o r 

4 i i i u s t r a t i o n , t h a t we were t o g e t t h e a p p r o v a l o f t h e 

5 M i t c h e l l and t h a t we w o u l d c o n v e r t B i g Sandy U n i t 1 t o 

6 gas and we c o n t i n u e w i t h R o c k p o r t as i t i s t o d a y , we 

7 w o u l d have 1,438 m e g a w a t t s o f c a p a c i t y . 

8 R i g h t now we're c u r r e n t l y e s t i m a t i n g 

9 t h a t o u r -- what -- t o meet o u r l o a d i n t h e summer 

10 peak and such i n PJM w o u l d be 1,390, and t h a t i n c l u d e s 

11 o u r r e s e r v e r e q u i r e m e n t . So we w i l l have t h a t e x c e s s 

12 o f r o u g h l y 48 m e g a w a t t s , w h i c h i s t h a t t h r e e p e r c e n t 

13 t h a t Mr. P a u l e y was r e p -- was d i s c u s s i n g b e f o r e . 

14 So i f we had ecoPower i n 2017, and 

15 a s s u m i n g n o t h i n g c h a n g e s , we w o u l d have an a d d i t i o n a l 

16 58 m e g a w a t t s t h a t we w o u l d t h e n s e l l i n t o t h e a u c t i o n . 

17 So we w o u l d n o t be d e f i c i t . 

18 Q Okay. Okay. G i v e me one se c o n d . 

19 Can you now -- can you t u r n t o page 13 

20 o f y o u r amended -- r e f e r t o page 8 -- I'm s o r r y , 13 o f 

21 t h e amended v e r i f i e d a p p l i c a t i o n , p a r a g r a p h 43. 

22 A   

23  Okay. Can you p l e a s e r e a d t h a t 

24 p a r a g r a p h o u t l o u d ? 

25 A "The d e c l a r a t o r y o r d e r p r o v i d e d f o r by 
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P a r a g r a p h 6.1(A) i s r e q u i r e d b e c a u s e c r e d i t r a t i n g 

a g e n c i e s t r e a t PPAs such as t h e REPA as f i x e d , 

d e b t - i i k e f i n a n c i a l o b l i g a t i o n s t h a t r e p r e s e n t 

s u b s t i t u t e s f o r c a p i t a i i n v e s t m e n t s by t h e u t i l i t y . 

As s u c h , PPA o b l i g a t i o n s , i n t h e f o r m o f c a p a c i t y 

p a y m e n t s , may be i n c o r p o r a t e d i n c r e d i t r a t i n g 

a g e n c i e s ' a s s e s s m e n t o f t h e u t i l i t y ' s 

c r e d i t w o r t h i n e s s . T h i s i s done by i m p u t i n g a p o r t i o n 

o f t h e n e t p r e s e n t v a l u e o f t h e s t r e a m o f c a p a c i t y 

p ayments as a d e b t o b l i g a t i o n o f t h e u t i l i t y f o r 

p u r p o s e s o f e v a l u a t i n g t h e u t i l i t y ' s c r e d i t s t a t i s t i c s 

Where, as u n d e r t h e ecoPower REPA, t h e r e i s n o t a 

s e p a r a t e c a p a c i t y c h a r g e , t h e r a t i n g a g e n c i e s i n d i c a t e 

t h e y use an i m p l i e d c a p a c i t y payment i n t h e i r 

 

Q Okay. Can you j u s t e x p l a i n what i s 

meant by t h i s p a r a g r a p h ? 

A The -- and maybe t h e e a s i e s t way t o h e l p 

w o u l d be t o go t o , i n my d i r e c t  E x h i b i t 

RKW-2, page 4, b u t what t h e -- i n p a r t i c u l a r , t h e 

S t a n d a r d & P o o r ' s , as t h e y a r e l o o k i n g and e v a l u a t i n g 

a PPA -- i f you w i l l go t o page 4, and i f 1 c o u l d j u s t 

r e a d some t h i n g s o u t o f t h a t e x h i b i t . 

 t h e f i r s t -- i t ' s t h e p a r t o f t h e --

t h e p a r a g r a p h s t a r t s on t h e p r e v i o u s page, b u t a b o u t 
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h a l f w a y down i t s a y s , ( R e a d i n g ) For such a PPA, we 

employ a 50 p e r c e n t r i s k f a c t o r . I n cases where a 

r e g u l a t o r has e s t a b l i s h e d a power c o s t a d j u s t m e n t 

mechanism, r e c o v e r y o f a l l p r u d e n t PPA c o s t s , we 

employ a r i s k f a c t o r o f 25 p e r c e n t , because t h e 

r e c o v e r y h u r d l e i s l o w e r t h a n i t i s f o r a u t i l i t y t h a t 

must l i t i g a t e t i m e and a g a i n i t s r i g h t t o r e c o v e r 

 . 

So t h e i d e a i n i t i a l l y i s t h a t , you know, 

i f t h e r e i s a PPA, and s p e c i f i c a l l y c a p a c i t y , t h e y 

a s s i g n some r i s k f a c t o r as i f i t was d e b t on K e n t u c k y 

  

However, i f you go down t o t h e p a r a g r a p h 

t h a t s ays " F i n a l l y , " i t s a y s , ( R e a d i n g ) F i n a l l y , we 

v i e w l e g i s l a t i v e l y c r e a t e d c o s t r e c o v e r y mechanism as 

l o n g e r l a s t i n g and more r e s i l i e n t t o change t h a n 

r e g u l a t o r y c o s t r e c o v e r y v e h i c l e s .  s u c h 

mechanisms l e a d t o r i s k f a c t o r s b e t w e e n z e r o and 

15 p e r c e n t , d e p e n d i n g on t h e l e g i s l a t i v e p r o v i s i o n s 

f o r c o s t r e c o v e r y and t h e s u p p l y f u n c t i o n s b o r n e by 

t h e u t i l i t y . L e g i s l a t i v e g u a r a n t e e s o f c o m p l e t e and 

t i m e l y r e c o v e r y o f c o s t s a r e p a r t i c u l a r l y i m p o r t a n t t o 

a c h i e v i n g t h e l o w e s t r i s k  

So as we e v a l u a t e d w h e t h e r o r n o t t o 

a p p l y a r i s k f a c t o r , t h e r e were two t h i n g s t h a t l e d us 
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t o n o t p u t t i n g an a d d i t i o n a l i m p u t e d d e b t r i s k f a c t o r 

i n o u r c a l c u l a t i o n . One was r e f e r e n c e t o 6-1 and t h e 

d e t a i l s i n t h e r e where K e n t u c k y Power m i t i g a t e d t h e 

r i s k s f r o m t h e s t a n d p o i n t o f t h a t i f we d i d n ' t r e c e i v e 

c o n c u r r e n t c o s t r e c o v e r y o f t h e REPA, t h e n we w o u l d 

n o t go f o r w a r d w i t h -- and we needed an o r d e r f r o m t h e 

Commission f o r t h a t , t h e n we w o u l d n o t go f o r w a r d w i t h 

t h i s and t h e REPA c o u l d be t e r m i n a t e d . 

The s e c o n d p a r t t h a t a s s i s t e d w i t h us 

d e t e r m i n i n g t h a t we needed a z e r o p e r c e n t r i s k f a c t o r 

was S e n a t e B i l l 46 t h a t was p a s s e d i n t h e 2013 

l e g i s l a t i v e s e s s i o n , w h i c h was a b i l l t h a t a l l o w e d t h e 

bio m a s s -- t h a t i f an a g r e e m e n t was a p p r o v e d by t h e 

Commission, t h a t t h e n i t w o u l d s t a y i n e f f e c t f o r t h e 

e n t i r e t y o f t h e o r i g i n a l c o n t r a c t p e r i o d , w h i c h i n 

t h i s c a s e , t a l k i n g a b o u t eco and b i o m a s s , w o u l d be 

2 0  

And i n l o o k i n g a t -- i t ' s v e r y u n u s u a l . 

We have n o t f o u n d a nywhere i n any o t h e r s t a t e where a 

l e g i s l a t i v e --  p a s s e d a g r e e m e n t g i v e s us 

t h a t much c e r t a i n t y , w h i c h i s t h e n why we chose z e r o 

p e r c e n t , even t h o u g h h e r e i t s a i d somewhere f r o m z e r o 

t o 15 p e r c e n t . 

So t h a t c a p a c i t y t h e r e , t h e y ' r e l o o k i n g 

a t t h e i d e a o f r e c o v e r y , and we f e e l l i k e t h a t ,  
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i t i s o u t t h e r e as an i s s u e , b u t t h a t we have 

m i t i g a t e d t h a t , and why, as s u c h , we have used z e r o 

p e r c e n t as o u r r i s k f a c t o r . 

Q Okay. So t h a t i m p l i e d c a p a c i t y payment 

i s a s s o c i a t e d w i t h t h a t r i s k f a c t o r t h a t t h e r a t i n g 

a g e n c i e s w o u l d --

A  

Q -- w o u l d i m p u t e ? So stemm i n g f r o m t h a t , 

do you b e l i e v e t h a t t h e REPA, t h e p r o p o s e d REPA w i l l 

have an e f f e c t on K e n t u c k y Power's c r e d i t w o r t h i n e s s as 

d e t e r m i n e d by t h e c r e d i t r a t i n g a g e n c i e s ? 

A I b e l i e v e we have done e v e r y t h i n g i n o u r 

power t h a t i t w o u l d n o t a f f e c t t h e c r e d i t agency 

r a t i n g , w h i c h i s why, t h e n , y ou know, we d i d n o t 

i m p u t e any i m -- any d e b t f o r t h i s . 

Q G i v e n t h e r e c o v e r y --

A G i v e n t h e r e c o v e r y . 

Q -- o f t h e c o s t s ? 

A A b s o l u t e l y . 

Q Okay. Can you r e f e r t o -- w e l l , g i v e me 

one s e c o n d . 

R e f e r now t o E x h i b i t 5 o f t h e amended 

v e r i f i e d a p p l i c a t i o n , w h i c h i s t h e p r o p o s e d b i o m a s s 

e n e r g y r i d e r . 

A   
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